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VIA HAND DELIVERY 1 , .  

Division of Records and Reporting 

..I-_ .-- Ms. Blanca S. Bayo, Director r x  w x: 

I _- - 1  
i s i  

Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850 

Re: In re: Application for Certificate to  provide Alternative Local 
Exchange Telecommunications Service bv the City of Quincv 

Dear Ms. Bayo: 

Enclosed for filing with the Florida Public Service Commission are: 

1) The original and six (6) copies of the City of Quincy’s Application for 
Authority to Provide Alternative Local Exchange Telecommunications Service 
within the State of Florida; and 

2) A check in the amount of $250.00 for payment of the application fee. 

For our records, please acknowledge your receipt of this filing on the 
enclosed copy of this letter. Thank you for your consideration in this matter. 



** FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION ** 

DIVISION OF REGULATORY OVERSIGHT 
CERTIFICATION SECTION 

APPLICATION FORM C)ao 884-+m-- 
for 

AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE 
ALTERNATIVE LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE 

WITHIN THE STATE OF FLORIDA 

Instructions 

. This form is used as an application for an original certificate and for 
approval of the assignment or transfer of an existing certificate. In the 
case of an assignment or transfer, the information provided shall be for 
the assignee or transferee (See Page 12). 

0 Print or type all responses to each item requested in the application and 
appendices. If an item is not applicable, please explain why. 

0 Use a separate sheet for each answer which will not fit the allotted space. 

II Once completed, submit the original and six (6) copies of this form along 
with a non-refundable application fee of $250.00 to: 

Florida Public Service Commission 
Division of Records and Reporting 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 
(850) 41 3-6770 

El If you have questions about completing the form, contact: 

Florida Public Service Commission 
Division of Regulatory Oversight 
Certification Section 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 
(850) 41 3-6480 

FORM PSClCMU 8 (11195) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.870, and 25-24.815 



APPLICATION 

1. This is an application for / (check one): 

( J ) Original certificate (new company). 

( ) Approval of transfer of existing certificate: Example, a non-certificated 
company purchases an existing company and desires to retain the 
original certificate of authority. 

( ) Approval of assignment of existing certificate: Example, a certificated 
company purchases an existing company and desires to retain the 
certificate of authority of that company. 

( ) Approval of transfer of control: Example, a company purchases 51% of a 
certificated company. The Commission must approve the new 
controlling entity. 

2. Name of company: 

City of Quincy 

3. Name under which the applicant will do business (fictitious name, etc.): 

netq u i ncy, netg u i ncy.com, and www.netq u i ncy.com 

4. Official mailing address (including street name & number, post office box, city, 
state, zip code): 

404 West Jefferson Street 
Quincv, FL 32351 
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5. Florida address (including street name & number, post office box, city, state, 
zip code): 

Same as Above 

6. Structure of organization: 

( ) Individual ( ) Corporation 
( ) Foreign Corporation ( ) Foreign Partnership 
( ) General Partnership ( ) Limited Partnership 
( J  ) Other Municipal Government 

7. If individual, provide: Not applicable. 

Name: 

Title: 

Address: 

CityIStatelZip: 

Telephone No.: Fax No.: 

Internet E-Mail Address: 

Internet Website Address: 

8. If incorporated in Florida, provide proof of authority to operate in Florida: 

(a) The Florida Secretary of State corporate registration number: 

Not aDplicable. 

3 FORM PSClCMU 8 (11195) 
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9. If foreiqn corporation, provide proof of authority to operate in Florida: 

(a) The Florida Secretary of State corporate registration number: 

Not applicable. 

I O .  If usinq fictitious name-dlbla, provide proof of compiiance with fictitious name 
statute (Chapter 865.09, FS) to operate in Fforida: 

(a) The Florida Secretary of State fictitious name registration number: 

netquincy - GO2213900148 

netquincy.com - GO221 3900149 

www.netquincy.com - GO2213900147 

11. If a limited liability partnership, provide proof of registration to operate in 
Fforida: 

(a) The Florida Secretary of State registration number: 

Not applicable. 

12. If a partnership, provide name, titie and address of all partners and a copy of 
the partnership agreement. 

Name: Not  applicable. 

Title: 

Address: 

C i tylS t a te/Zi p : 

Telephone No.: Fax No.: 

In te rn e t E-Mai I Address : 

Internet Website Address: 

13. If a foreiqn limited partnership, provide proof of compliance with the foreign 
limited partnership statute (Chapter 620.1 69, FS), if applicable. 
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(a) The Florida registration number: Not appiicable. 

14. Provide F.E.I. Number(if applicable): 5960OO416 

15. Indicate if any of the officers, directors, or any of the ten largest stockholders 
have previously been: 

(a) adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompetent, or found guilty of any felony or 
of any crime, or whether such actions may result from pending proceedings. 
Provide explanation. 

None 

(b) an officer, director, partner or stockholder in any other Florida certificated 
telephone company. If yes, give name of company and relationship. If no 
longer associated with company, qive reason whv not. 

None 

16. Who wit1 serve as liaison to the Commission with regard to the following? 

(a) The application: 

Name: Karen D. Walker 
Title: Holland & Kniqht LLP 
Address : 
CityIStateIZip: Tallahassee, FL 32301 

315 South Calhoun Street, Suite 600 

Tetephone No.: (850) 425-5612 Fax No.: (850) 224-8832 
Internet E-Mail Address: 
Internet Website Address: http:\\www. hktaw.com 

kwal ker@ hklaw.com 
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(b) Official point of contact for the onqoinq operations of the company: 

Name: Robert J. Washinqton 
Title: Director of Telecommunications 
Address: c/o The City of Quincy 

404 W. Jefferson Street 
City/State/Zip: Quincy, FL 32351 
Telephone No.: (850) 627-7681 Ext. 251 Fax No.: (850) 875-3733 

Internet E-Mail Address: bob@netquincy.com 
lnternet Website Address: www.netquincy.com 

(c) Complaintsllnquiries from customers: 

Name: Robert J. WashinQton 

Title: Director of Teiecommunications 

Address: c/o Citv of Quincy, 404 W. Jefferson Street 

City/State/Zip: Quincy, FL 32351 

Telephone No.: (850) 627-7681 Ext. 251 

Internet E-Mail Address: bob@netquincy.com 

Internet Website Address: www.netquincy.com 

List the states in which the applicant: 

(a) has operated as an alternative local exchange company. 

None 

(b) has applications pending to be certificated as an alternative local 
exchange company. 

Fax No.: (850) 875-3733 

17. 

None 

(c) is cerificated to operate as an alternative ,oca1 exchange company. 

None 

6 FORM PSCKMU 8 (11195) 
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(d) has been denied authority to operate as an alternative local exchange 
company and the circumstances involved. 

None 

(e) has had regulatory penalties imposed for violations of 
telecommunications statutes and the circumstances involved. 

None 

(f) has been involved in civil court proceedings with an interexchange 
carrier, local exchange company or other telecommunications entity, and 
the circumstances involved. 

None 

18. Submit the following: 

A. Managerial capability: give resumes of employeeslofficers of the 
company that would indicate sufficient managerial experiences of each. 

See Exhibit A. 

B. Technical capability: give resumes of employeeslofficers of the company 
that would indicate sufficient technical experiences or indicate what 
company has been contracted to conduct technical maintenance. 

See Exhibit A. 
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C. Financial capability. 

The application should contain the applicant's audited financial statements 
for the most recent 3 years. If the applicant does not have audited financial 
statements, it shall so be stated. See Composite Exhibit B (audited financial 
statements for 1998, 1999 and 2000). 

The unaudited financial statements should be signed by the applicant's chief 
executive officer and chief financial officer affirming that the financial 
statements are true and correct and should include: 

1. the balance sheet: 

2. income statement: and 

3. statement of retained earnings. 

NOTE: This documentation may include, but is not limited to, financial statements, 
a projected profit and loss statement, credif references, credit bureau reports, and 
descriptions of business relationships with financial institutions. 

Further, the following (which includes supporting documentation) should be 
provided: 

I. written explanation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability 
to provide the requested service in the geographic area proposed to be 
served. 

2. written explanation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability 
to maintain the requested service. 

3. written explanation that the applicant has sufficient financial capability 
to meet its lease or ownership obligations. 

See Exhibit C. 
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THIS PAGE MUST BE COMPLETED AND SIGNED 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

APPLICANT ACKNOWLEDGMENT STATEMENT 

REGULATORY ASSESSMENT FEE: I understand that all telephone 
companies must pay a regulatory assessment fee in the amount of . I5  of one 
percent of gross operating revenue derived from intrastate business. 
Regardless of the gross operating revenue of a company, a minimum annual 
assessment fee of $50 is required. 

GROSS RECEIPTS TAX: I understand that all teIephone companies must pay 
a gross receipts tax of two and one-half percent on all intra and interstate 
business. 

SALES TAX: I understand that a seven percent sales tax must be paid on 
intra and interstate revenues. 

APPLICATION FEE: I understand that a non-refundable application fee of 
$250.00 must be submitted with the application. 

UTILITY OFFICIAL: 

Robert J. Washington 
Print Name 

Director of Telecomm u n ications 
Title 

(850) 627-6781 Ext. 251 (850) 875-3733 / U 
Telephone No. Fax No. 

Address: City of QuincV 

404 W. Jefferson St. 

Quincy, FL 32351 

9 FORM PSC/CMU 8 (11/95) 
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THIS PAGE MUST BE COMPLETED AND SIGNED 

AFFIDAVIT 

By my signature below, I, the undersigned officer, attest to the accuracy of 
the information contained in this application and attached documents and 
that the applicant has the technical expertise, managerial ability, and financial 
capability to provide alternative local exchange company service in the State 
of Florida. I have read the foregoing and declare that, to the best of my 
knowledge and belief, the information is true and correct. I attest that I have 
the authority to sign on behalf of my company and agree to comply, now and 
in the future, with all applicable Commission rules and orders. 

Further, I am aware that, pursuant to Chapter 837.06, Florida Statutes, 
"Whoever knowingly makes a false statement in writing with the intent to 
mislead a public servant in the performance of his official duty shall be guilty 
of a misdemeanor of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 
and s. 775.083." 

UTlllTY OFFICIAL: 

Robert J. Washington 
P ri n t Name 

Director of Telecommunications 
Title 

ISSO) 627-6781 Ext. 251 
Telephone No. 

I 

1850) 875-3733 
Fax No. 

Address: Citv of Quincy 

404 W. Jefferson St. 

Quincy, FL 32351 

I O  FORM PSCKMU 8 (11195) 
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.805, 
25-24.81 0, and 25-24.81 5 



, C 

INTRASTATE NETWORK (if available) 
[NOT APPLICABLE] 

Cha ter 25-24.825 (5), Florida Administrative Code, requires the company to make 
avai P able to staff the alternative local exchange service areas only upon request. 

I. POP: Addresses where located, and indicate if owned or leased. 

2. SWITCHES: Address where located, by type of switch, and indicate 
if owned or leased. 

3. TRANSMISSlON FACILITIES: POP-to-POP facihties by type of 
faciiities microwave, fiber, copper, satellite, etc.) and indicate if 
owned or I eased. 

POP-to-POP OWNERSHIP 

11 FORM PSCICMU 8 (11195) 
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CERTIFICATE SALE, TRANSFER, OR ASSIGNMENT STATEMENT 
[NOT APPLICABLE] 

I, Name) 
(Ti i le) of (Name of Company) 

and current holder of Florida Public Service Commission Certificate Number # 

request for a: 

( )sale 

( )transfer 

( ) assignment 

of the above-mentioned certificate. 

, have reviewed this application and join in the petitioner's 

UTILITY OFFICIAL: 

Signatu re 

Date 

I elephone No. Fax No. 

Address : 



Exhibit A 

The City of Quincy (the "City") is a municipality that is governed by a five- 
member City Commission. The City Commission is responsible for making all major 
budget and spending decisions, including decisions with regard to 
telecommunications services and facilities. The City is submitting this application for 
Alternative Local Exchange Company (''ALEC") certification so that  it can build on its 
telecommunications capabilities and respond to community-based 
telecommunications needs. 

The City has developed managerial and technical capabilities in numerous 
areas as a result of its wide-ranging responsibilities as a municipal government. The 
City has an annual budget of approximately $ 3 0  million. The City's staff includes 
156 employees. 

Although the City itself has the managerial and technical capabilities required 
for ALEC certification, the City is currently in the process of exploring relationships 
with other entities, including other telecommunications providers, which could 
provide additional managerial and technical support to the City. 

Managerial Capability 

Robert J .  Washington, Director of General ServicedTelecommunications, will 
be responsible for implementation of policies established by the City Commission 
with regard to telecommunications services and facilities and overall management of 
the City's telecommunications operations. The City's General 
Services/Telecommunications Department is responsible for the City's information 
technology and telecommunications functions. Mr. Washington has been an 
administrator in local government for almost 16 years. In addition to information 
technology and telecommunications, Mr. Washington manages procurement, property 
control, risk management and public information. The City of Quincy became a n  
Internet Service Provider in March of 2001. This project, which continues to be 
further developed today, was conceived, implemented and is being managed by Mr. 
Washington. 

Prior to joining the City of Quincy, Mr. Washington was the assistant 
Procurement Director for the Leon County Board of County Commissioners for over 
12 years where he was heavily involved in the acquisition of telecommunications and 
technological equipment and services. 

Other City employees with managerial experience that can provide additional 
management and other support on an as-needed basis are Willie Earl Banks, Interim 
City Manager, and Jack L. McLean, Jr., City Attorney. The resumes of Mr. Banks 
and Mr. McLean are attached hereto. 



Technical Cagabilitv 

The City's Telecommunications Division of the General Services Department 
will be responsible for operation and management of the City's telecommunications 
system and services on a day-to-day basis, and development and improvement of the 
City's capabilities in this effort. The City's General Services Department has 
expertise in a wide range of technical areas. The City will also utilize consultants for 
technical expertise and will hire additional experienced technical personnel as its 
internet and telecommunications systems are further developed. The City has good 
relationships with a number of capable firms that will be of great assistance in this 
endeavor. 

Information regarding the technical experience of Robert Washington is set 
forth above. As noted, other technical assistance will be provided through outside 
consultants which will be retained in the future. 



Willie Earl Banks 
362 E. King Street 
Quincy, FL 32351 

850/627-7681 (W) 850/875-2325 (H) 

P E R S O N A L  D A T A  

Birthdate: October 31, 1949 
Marital Status Married 
Height 6’2” 
Weight 195# 
Health Good 
Child re n 4 

E D U C A T I O N  

Florida A & M University 
Tallahassee, FL 

B.S. - INDUSTRIAL ARTS 

7971 - 1977 

M. ED - INDUSTRIAL EDUCATION. 

S U M M A R Y  O F  Q U A L I F I C A T I O N S  

Knowledge of modern techniques, methods, procedures and practices of 
administration. Ability to plan, direct, supervise and inspect programs and activities. 
Ability to prepare written technical reports, estimates, construction and cost records. 
Ability to plan, assign, instruct, review and evaluate work assignments of personnel. 

Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with 
subordinates, elected officials and pertinent community officials, such as, but not limited 
to, the County Manager, Director of the Chamber of Commerce and Gadsden County 
School Board members, relating to the area of responsibility. 

Ability to evaluate problems and respond to community needs. 

Ability to communicate effectively both orally and in writing. 

Knowledge of personnel administration principles, rules and regulations, 
knowledge of budget and purchasing processes. Knowledge of administrative rules of 
the City of Quincy. 



P R O F E S S I O N A L  E X P E R I E N C E  

City of Quincy, FL 
Quincy, Florida 

Interim City Manager. 

January 2000 - Present 

Maior Functions: Perform the duties of the City Manager. Employ or appoint City 
employees. 

Duties: Direct and supervise the administration of all departments, offices and 
agencies of the City. 

Attend all City Commission meetings. 

See that all laws, provisions of the charter and acts of the City Commission are 
faithfully executed. 

Make reports as the City Commission requires concerning the operations of City 
departments, offices and agencies. 

Keep the City Commission fully advised as to the financial condition and future 
needs of the City and make recommendations to the City Commission concerning 
the affairs of the City. 

City of Quincy, FL 
Quincy, Florida 

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR. 

7997 - Present 

Maior Functions: Highly responsible administrative and technical work in directing 
all activities at the Public Works Department. 

Duties: Plan, coordinate, direct and exercise supervision over employees engaged 
in a wide variety of public works services. 

Study departmental organization, personnel distribution and project requirements to 
effect the most efficient and economical utilization of facilities, personnel and 
equipment. 

Oversee construction and maintenance of the City street systems. 

Develop and implement programs, practices and procedures for the department. 

Conduct meetings and conferences to discuss work problems, policy changes, 
safety and other related matters. 



Direct the budget preparation for the Department. Make procedural and operational 
recommendations to the City Manager. 

Direct and participate in the selection, placement, promotion, training, development, 
safety, discipline and appraisal of personnel. 

Perform other related duties as assigned. 

City of Quincy, FL 
Quincy, Florida 

D I RECTO R 0 F H 0 US 1 N G REHAB I L I  TAT1 ON. 

7988- 7997 

Maior Function: Responsible for the implementation of the Housing Rehabilitation 
Program. Supervising and carrying out grant-funded rehabilitation projects in the 
City’s designated target areas. 

Duties: Supervise a staff. 

Determine contractor and applicant eligibility, assist prospective recipients with 
application and contract procedures. 

Oversee cost estimates on each project handled by staff. 

Receive bids and recommend bid awards to the Community Development Director. 

Inspect construction sites to determine compliance with Program requirements and 
specifications. 

Oversee property acquisitions and temporary relocation activities. 

Determine necessary change orders and make those recommendations to the 
Community Development Director, giving final approval of rehabilitation work before 
payments are made to the contractor. 

Report to the City Manager and the City Commission concerning program 
implementation and progress when necessary. 



Clark, Roumelis and Associates, 
Inc. 
Tallahassee, FL 

H ou s I NG R EHABI LITATI o N S PEC I A L  I ST 

7987- 7988 

Duties: Perform preliminary inspections of project sites to determine cost 
estimates. Prepare work write-ups giving rehabilitation requirements and 
procedures for each project 

Conduct pre-bid conferences. 

Assist in bid openings and perform daily inspections of construction. Make change 
order recommendations and submit requests for contractor payments to the 
Housing Rehabilitation Director 

Report directly to the Housing Rehabilitation Director in all duties and when 
necessary to the Director of Community Development. This work covered three 
counties. 

City of Quincy, fl 
H ous I NG REHABILITATION SPECIALIST 

1983- -1987 

Duties: Same as above except I was only responsible for the City of Quincy. 

Williston High School 
Williston, FL 

INSTRUCTOR O F  l N D U S T R l A t  ARTS 

1980- 7983 

Duties: Responsible for teaching woodwork, plastics, metal work and drafting to 
high school students. 

Casting Company of America 
Quincy, FL 

PRODUCTION SUPERVISOR 

1979 - 1980 

Duties: Responsible for the supervision of fourteen men and maintaining over 
$500,00 worth of foundry equipment. 



1977- 7979 Havana Middle School 
Havana, FL 

INSTRUCTOR OF INDUSTRIAL ARTS AND UNITED STATES HISTORY 

Duties: Responsible for teaching woodwork in industrial arts and teaching United 
States history to eighth grade students. 

Sunfand Retardation Center 
Tallahassee, FL 

ORDERLY 

7973- 1977 

Duties: Responsible for assisting clients to bed and helping plan and organize their 
routine for the next day. 

M I L I T A R Y  E X P E R I E N C E  

August 1969 
August 1971 

Basic Training (Ft. Benning, GA) 
Advance infantry Training (Ft. Lewis, Washington) 
Overseas - Vietnam 
Rank: Sgt. E-5 

P R O F E S S I O N A L  M E M B E R S H I P S  

Member of St. Hebron A.M.E. Church 
Steward, Layman’s President and Youth Coordinator 

Director of A.M.E. Credit Union 

Parliamentarian for Gadsden District Lay Organization 

District Church School Superintendent 

Board of Directors for literacy Volunteers of Gadsden County 

Board of Directors for Gadsden Arts 

R E F E R E N C E S  

A V A I L A B L E  U P O N  REQUEST 



XI 

i-kmc: ' Services Firm Directory Reference I Web Desktop I GlobalNet Adjuncts ~ - _. - - ~ -- 

.Welcome: J-ack Recent PAW: Visit the Practic-ee4rea Webs ... - -- -I - - _L___ 

-- 

New! 
Click here to 

7 -  

j 3 View for .print. 

automaticalIy add this , 

page to your MyHUaw Jack L. McLean, Jr. has practiced law for 35 years in the areas of labor 
"MyLinks" 

[Enter Last Name 

Accounting - 
I 3 1 Credit & 

Collections - 
3 -Hu" 

. 4 I Information 
Technoiop y 

Resources 
L 

I I  

l 3 Library & 

~ 3 ~ Marketing 

and employment, commercial litigation, administrative and regulatory 
litigation, municipal and governmental litigation, zoning and land use 
litigation. As a trial lawyer he represented national, regional and public 
employers in jury and non-jury trials in individual and class action 
employment cases and labor controversies. He consulted with and 
counseled employers on numerous labor issues. In union representational 
proceedings, arbitration, and strikes, he trained. counseled and advised 

- I employers on union corporate campaign strategy, RICO violations, 2 ~ consumer boycotts, direct dealing, and strike misconduct. He is an integra 
I part of the national planning with and training for national clients' 
1 managers and supervisors in negotiating collective bargaining agreements 
~ and coordinating strike preparation. 
I 

Mr. McLean successfully defended employers in Fair Labor Standards Ac 
, litigation, First Amendment and Section 1983 property and due process 
' claims, public accommodations claims, racial and ethnic discrimination 
' claims, sexual harassment charges, equal pay act claims, rehabilitation acl 
1 and ADA suits, non-compete litigation and hospital privilege/antitrust 

-litigation. In the area of labor law, he trained and advised employers in 
organization campaigns, secondary picketing and edorcement machinery 
of the National Labor Relations Board and State Boards. He is 
experienced in representing employers in representational proceedings an 
unfair labor practice proceedings. 

He has extensive experience advising on personnel and human resources 
matters, and empIoyment practices including drafting contracts, policies 
and procedures. He has taught courses and spoken to various groups on 
employment-related topics, including the Annual EmpIoyment Law 
Seminar sponsored by the National Employment Law Conference, and ha 
published many articles on employment law matters: e.g., An Analysis of 
Employer Liability for Leased Temporary Employees Under Labor and 
Employment Law, National Employment Law Conference, 1997; J. 
McLean, Jr. and R. Hankins, Employer Liability For Sexual Harassment, 
1998. 

He previously served as MayoriCommissioner for Tallahassee, Florida, 
Adjunct Professor for Private and Public Sector law at Florida A&M 
University, Adjunct Professor for Civil Trial Practice at Florida State 
University College of Law, Director, Legal Services of North Florida? 
Inc.: Chair of Florida Human Relations Commission, Chair and General 
Counsel for Florida Public Employees Relations Commission (State labor 
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commission) and currently is the City Attorney for Quincy, Florida. 

&ea Webs He is active in his community, serving on volunteer panels for legal 
services and legal aid societies and sponsors a reading/scholarship 
program in Gadsden County, Florida and is member of the Cornerstone 
Society for Atlanta Public Service Television and Radio Stations. 

MI. McLean earned his B.A. from University of North Carolina in 1971, 
and his J.D. in 1974 from Florida State University College of Law. 
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Mr. McLean is admitted to practice before all Georgia state courts, the 
U.S. District Courts for the Northem, Southem and Middle Districts of 
Georgia, U.S. Northern and Southern Districts of Florida and the Eleventl 
Circuit Court of Appeals. He is a member of the State Bar of Georgia 
(Labor and Employment Law Section), The Florida Bar (Labor and 
Employment Section), the American Bar Association (Sections on Labor 
and Employment Law): the Gate City Bar Association, the National Bar 
Association, Phi Delta Phi Legal Fraternity, and Kappa Alpha Psi 
Fraternity. 
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Composite Exhibit B 

Audited financial statements for 1998, 1999 and 2000 are attached. 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 

FlCNANCLAL STATEMXNTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,1998 
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P 1 JAMES MOORE 6 C O .  
CERTIFIED P U B L I C  A C C O U N T A N T S  

lLNDEPEh?SENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Honorable City Commission, 
City of Quincy, Florida: 

We have audited the accompanying general urpose financial statements of the City of Quincy, Florida, 

financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Quincy, Florida's management. Our 
responsibifity is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our audit. 

as of and for the year ended September 30, 1 J 98, as listed in the table of contents. These general purpose 

We conducted our audit in  accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonabie assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the eneral purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting 
principles used anf  significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall eneral 

opinion. 
purpose financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis f? or our 

In our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fair1 , in all material 

with generally accepted accounting principles. 

respects, the financial osition of the City of Quincy, Florida, as of Se tember 30, 199 i and the results 
of its operations and t R e cash flows of its proprietary fund types for t K e year then ended in conformity 

City of Quincy, Florida has not presented the disclosures required by Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board Technical BuIletrn 98- 1, Disclosures aboul Year 2000 Issues, as amended by 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Technical Bulletin 99- 1,  that the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board has determined are necessary to  supplement, although not be a art of, the general 

or will become year 2000 compliant, that City of Quincy, Florida's year 2000 remediation efforts will b e ,  
successful in whole or in part, or that parties with which City of Quincy, Florida does business are or will 
become year 2000 compliant. 

purpose financial statement. In addition, we do not provide assurance that the City o P Quincy, Florida, is 

/ 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 3, 
1999, on our consideration of City of Quincy, Florida's internal control over financia1 reporting and our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. 

Our audit was performed for the purpose of formin eneral purpose financial 

accompanying additional information listed in the table of contents are presented for pu oses of 

Quincy, Florida. Such information has  been subjected to the auditing procedures a plied in the audit of 

an opinion on the 
statements taken as a whole. The accompanying sche f ule of expenditures o B financial awards and the 

additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose financial statements o 'F C i v  of 

the genera1 urpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in a P 1 material respects in 
relation to t R e general purpose financial statements taken as a whole. moeu + 
Tallahassee, Florida 
September 3, 1999 

v 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 

SEPTEMBER 30,1998 
(Continued) 

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET -- ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS 

Governmental Fiduciary Proprietary 
Fund Type 

Enterprise 

Account Groups 
Totals Genera: General Fund Types 

Snccial 
Fund Type 

Trust Fixed 
Assets 

Long-term (Memoranduni 
Debt Only) Riven u e Cen era I Funds 

LIABILITIES, EQUITY A N D  OTHER CREDITS 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Com ensated absences payable 
Pa a!lc from restricted assets- 

&men( ortion of revenue bonds payable 
Accruednterest on matured bonds payable 
Customer deposits 

Deferred revenues 
Due to other funds 
Revenue bonds ayable, long-term portion 
Estimated landli];l closure costs 
Contin ent liabilities 
Capitaflease payable 
Notespa able 

&tal liabilities 

s 454.G73 $ 2,369 $ 1,020,053 
18,982 

$ 30,452 $ .% 
152,355 

$ 1,507,547 
171.337 

10.000 
461,191 4,6 I 5  

502,289 
528,662 
8 76.000 

I,005.500 
200.000 

10.200 

10,000 
4.615 

460,966 
122,927 
44,472 

876,000 
1,005,500 

200,000 

33 1,200 
4,094,7 I5 

225 
75,089 304,273 

468.5 15 15,675 

10.200 
5 18;962 
681.517 

850,162 
6,127.503 46, I27 77,683 

E uity and otfier credits 
Investment in general fixed assets 
Contributions: 

Retained earnings: 

Contributed capital - ca ita1 grants 
Contributed capital - o&r 

Reserved for capital improvements 
Reserved for contingency and landfill 
Reserved for debt service 
Unreserved 

Fund balances: 
Reserved for prepaid assets 
Reserved for employee retirement 
Unreserved 

Total equity and other credits 

13,402,246 13,402,246 

3,133.67 I 
25 1,669 

57,391 
850,264 
118,622 

9,090,057 

30.884 
8.979.955 

3,133.671 
25 1,669 

57,39 1 
850,264 
I 18.622 

9,090,057 

30,884 
8,979,955 

8,979,955 
‘338,282 

36,253,04 I 
( 1,507) 
( 1,507) 

339,789 
370,673 13,402,246 1330 1,674 

Total Liabilities, Equity and Other Credils S 681,517 $ 42,380,544 
c 4 

$ 13.402.246 s 9,026,082 , $ 17,596,389 $ 76. I76 S 1.598.134 

- 4 -  



CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,1998 
CHANGES IN F"D BALANCES - ALL GOVERIYMENTAL FUND TYPES 

Totals 

General Revenue Only) 
Special (Memorandum 

Revenues 
Taxes, licenses and permits 
Intergovernmental 
Other 

Totai revenues 

Ex pen d i t u res 
General government 
Public safety 
Transportat ion 
Human services 
Culture and recreation 
Physical environment 
Economic environment 

Totai expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Sale of general fixed assets 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Tota) other financing sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
financing sources over expenditures 

Fund balances, beginning of year 

Fund balances, end of year 

$ 945,283 $ - $  945,283 
63 1,611 8,936 640,547 

1.065.939 2.937 1.068.876 
2,642,833 11,873 2,654,706 

1,2 19,673 
3,126,254 

626,620 
24,293 

656,326 
299,828 

84,3 14 
6,037,308 

1,2 1 9,673 
c 3,126,254 
c 626,620 
- 24,293 

6 6 2,9 9 2 
- 299,828 

14,103 98,4 I7 
20,769 6,05 8,077 

6,666 

(3,394,475) (8,896) (3,403,3 7 I ) 

40,762 - 40,762 
3,600,OOO 3,60O,OOO 

(5,407) (5,407) 
3,63 5,3 5 5  3,63 5,3 5 5 

240,880 W 9 6 )  23 1,984 

129,793 7,3 89 137,182 

$ 370,673 $ (1,507) $ 369.1 66 

The accompanying notes to financial statements 
are an integral part of this statement. 



CITY OF QUXNCY, FLORIDA 
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN F"D BALANCES - 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - ALL BUDGETED GOVERNMENTAL TYPES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,1998 

General Fund 

Revenues 
Taxes, licenses and permits 
Intergovemmental 
Other 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
G en era1 govemm ent 
Public safety 
Tiansportat ion 
Human services 
Culture and recreation 
Physical environment 
Economic environment 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Sale of general fixed assets 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
fina nring sources over expenditures 

~ ~~~ ~ _ _ _  ~ _ _ _  

Variance 
Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

s 822,500 $ 945,283 $ 122,783 
1,006,309 631,611 (374,698) 
1.014.979 1,065.939 50.960 
2.84 3,788 2,642.83 3 (200,955) 

1,253.479 
3,496,873 

954,004 
28,65 1 

734, I 18 
404,795 
2 16.495 

7,088-4 15 

1.2 19,673 
3,126.254 

626,620 
24.293 
656,326 
299,828 

84.3 14 
6,037,308 

33,806 
370,6 19 
327.384 

4,358 
77,792 

104,967 
132.181 

1.05 1,107 

(4,244,627) f 3.3 94.475) 850,152 

145,000 40,762 ( 1  04,238) 
3,600,000 3,600,000 

(5,407) (5,407) 
3,745,000 3,635,355 ( 109,645) 

(499,627) 240,880 740,507 

Fund balances, beginning of year 129,793 129,793 

Fund batances, end of year S (369,834) S 370,673 S 740,507 
c 

The accompanying notes to financial statements 
are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,1998 
EAlRNINGS - ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES 

Operating revenues 
Charges for services 

Operating expenses 
Cost of sales and services 
General and administrative 
Deprec jat i on and amortization 
Taxes 
Treatment 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income 

$ 16,942,587 

10,958,054 
858,452 
552,771 
2 16,439 
869,347 

13,455,063 

3,487,524 

No II o pe rati n g revea u es (expenses) 
Interest income 
interest expense 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

23 6,'7 77 
(5 5,PO 1) 
180,876 

Income before operating transfers 

Operating transfers 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Net operating transfers 

Net income 

Retained earnings, beginning of year 

Retained earnings, end of year 

3,668,400 

5,407 
(3,600,000) 
(3,594,593) 

73,807 

10,042,527 

S 10.1 16,334 

The accompanying notes to financial statements 
are an integral part of this statement. 



CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 

PENSION TRUST FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,1998 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN IQZT ASSETS - 

Police and 
Fir em en's 

Retirement Supplemental 
Savings Pension 

PlaD Plan Total 

ADDITIONS 

Contributions: 
State of Florida 
Plan members 
Employer 

Total contributions 

Investment income: 
Earnings 

Total Additions 

DEDUCTIONS 

Benefit payments 
Administrative expense 

Total Deductions 

Net increase (decrease) 

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits 

Beginning of year 

End of year 

$ - $  85,453 $ 85,453 
103,752 103,752 

386,695 - 3 86,695 
386,695 189,205 575,900 

324,4 5 6 I5 1,365 475,82 I 

71 1,151 340,570 1,05 1,721 

744,43 8 97,044 84 1,482 
48,493 48,493 

744,43 8 145,537 889,975 
- 

(3 3,287) 195,033 161,746 

5,14 1,663 3,676,3 49 8,8 18,012 

!$ 5,108,376 $ 3,871,382 $ 8,979,758 

The accompanying notes to financial statements 
are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 

ALL PROPRIETARY F"D TYPES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,1998 
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS- 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Cash received from customers 
Cash paid to suppliers 
Cash paid to employees 

Net cash provided by operating acthpities 

$ 16,890,302 
(12,036,241) 

(559.942) 
4.294.1 19 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities 
Proceeds from other funds 
Operating transfers out 
Operating transfers in 

Net cash used in noncapital financing activities 

1,135,969 
(3,600,000) 

5.407 
(2.458.624) 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities 
Principal payments on long-term debt 
Proceeds from long-term debt 
Acquisition and construction of capital ~ S S ~ L S  
Interest paid 

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities 

( 10,000) 
33 1,200 
(702,3 34) 
(56.000) 

(437,134) 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Interest income 
Purchase of investments 

Net cash provided by investing activilies 

236,777 
(234.348) 

2,429 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivatents, beginning of year 

1,400,790 

1,161,9 12 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year S 2.562.702 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash 
provided by operating activities 

Operating income 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to 

net cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Increase in accounts receivable 
Decrease in inventories 
Increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Increase in utility deposits 
Decrease in other assets 
Decrease in due to other governments 
Increase in landfill closure costs payable 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

$ 3,487,524 

552,771 

(52,285) 
19,279 
20,07 1 
85,479 
21,215 

(63,43 5 )  
223.500 
806,595 

S 4,294,119 

The accompanying notes to financial statements 
are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,1998 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Reporting Entity 

The City of Quincy, Florida is a municipality which operates under a commission-manager form of 
government. The City was incorporated in 1823 pursuant to a Special Act of the State of Florida 
Legislature. Services provided by the City include public safety (police and fire), utility services 
(electric, water, sewer, gas, refuse collection and landfill), urban and economic development, 
highways and streets including public improvements and other general government activities. 

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation 

The accounts of the City are organized and operated on the basis of funds and account groups. A 
fund is an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Fund 
accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in 
demonstrating compliance with fmance-related legal and contractual provisions. The minimum 
number of funds are maintained consistent with legal and managerial requirements. Account 
groups are a reporting device to account for certain assets and liabilities of the governmental funds 
not recorded directly in those funds. 

The City has the following fund types and account groups: 

Governmental funds are used to account for the City's general governmental activities. 
Governmental fund types use the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recognized when susceptible to accrual (Le., when they are "measurable and available"). 
"Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay iiabilities of the current 
period. The City considers all revenues available if they are collected within 60 days after year end. 
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest 

on general long-term debt whicb is recognized when due, and certain compensated absences and 
claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with 
expendable available financial resources. 

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest are susceptible to accrual. Sales taxes 
collected and held by the State at year end on behalf of the City are also recognized as revenue. 
Other receipts and taxes become measurable and available when cash is received by the government 
and are recognized as revenue at that time. 

Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to 
accruai criteria are met, Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying 
expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been met. 

- 10- 



CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,1998 

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation (Continued) 

Governmental funds include the following fund types: 

The generalficnd is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for a11 financial resources of the 
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fbnd. 

The special revenue finds account for revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for 
specific purposes (not including expendable trusts). 

Proprietary funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus and use 
the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. The City applies all applicable FASB 
pronouncements in accounting and reporting for its proprietary operations. Proprietay funds 
include the following fund type: 

Enterprise funds are used to account for those operations that are financed and operated in a manner 
similar to private business or where the Commission has decided that the determination of revenues 
earned, costs incurred andlor net income is necessary for management accountability. 

Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent on behalf of 
others. Trust funds account for assets held by the City under the terms of a formal trust agreement. 

Thepension m t  find is accounted for in essentially the same manner as proprietary funds, using 
the same measurement focus and basis of accounting. The pension trust fund accounts for the 
assets of the City of Quincy, Florida’s, Retirement Savings Plan and for the Police and Firemen’s 
Supplemental Pension Plan. Employee and employer contributions are recognized in the period in 
which the contributions are due. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the terms of each plan. 

Account Groups. The general frxed asssls account group is used to account for fixed assets not 
accounted for in proprietary or trust funds. The general long-term debt account group is used to 
account for general long-term debt and certain other liabilities that are not specific liabilities of 
proprietary or trust funds. 

, 

C. Assets, Liabilities and Equity 

1. Deposits and Investments 

The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short- 
term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. 

^ ,  - 1  , 
. 1  . 

I. , 7:  .. . . -  

1.”- ,_ 

State statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, commercial paper, 
corporate bonds, repurchase agreements and State Treasurer‘s Investment Fool. 



rl I 

CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,1998 

C. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued) 

Investments are stated at fair value. 

The City is authorized by Chapter 1642.61 Florida Statutes to invest in certain government secured 
or guaranteed instruments and the City Charter further restricts such investments to interest-bearing 
United States, state and local government bonds, City of Quincy revenue certificate bonds and 
paving and tax liens. AI1 investments are insured and held in the name of the City by its agent. 

2. Receivables and Payables 

Transactions between funds that are representative of lendinghorrowing arrangements outstanding 
at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "interfund receivables/payablcs" (Le., the 
current portion of interfund loans) or "advances tolfrom other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion 
of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from 
other funds." 

All trade receivables are shown ne1 of an allowance for uncollectibles. 

Ad valorem property tax revenue is recognized in the fiscal year for which taxes are levied and 
available. Uncollected taxes are not accrued because such amounts are not measurable and 
available as of the balance sheet date. Taxes are billed and collected for the City by the County Tax 
Collector according to Florida Statute under the following calendar: 

Lien Date: January I 
Levy Date: October 1 
Due Date: November 1 
Delinquency Date: April 1, of the following year 

3. InventoriedPrepaid Items 

Inventories are valued at cost using the first-idfirst-out (FIFO) method. The costs of governmental 
fund-type inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect cost applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as 
prepaid items. 

4. Restricted Assets 

- : . .  

Certain proceeds of the City's revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their 
repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited by 
appticable bond covenants. 

- 12- 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORJDA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
SEPTEMBER 30,1998 

C. Assets, LiabiIities and Equity (Continued) 

5. Fixed Assets 

Fixed assets used in governmental fund types of the City are recorded in the general fixed assets 
account group at cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated fixed assets 
are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Assets in the general fixed assets 
account group are not depreciated. Interest incurred during construction is not capitaiized on 
general fixed assets. 

Public domain (infrastructure) general fixed assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks and other assets 
that are immovable and of value only to the City) are not capitalized. 

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend assets’ lives are not included in the general fixed assets account group or capitaiized in the 
proprietary funds. 

Property, plant and equipment in the proprietary funds of the City are recorded at cost. Property, 
plant and equipment donated to these proprietary fund type operations are recorded at their 
estimated fair value at the date of donation. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized in proprietary funds as projects 
are constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of proprietary fund fixed assets is 
reflected in the capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of interest earned on the invested 
proceeds over the same period. 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated in the proprietary funds of the City using the straight 
line method over the following estimated useful lives ranging from 3 to 40 years. 

6. Compensated Absences 

It is the City‘s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay 
benefits. Vacation and sick pay is accrued when incurred in proprietary funds and reported as a 
fund iiability. Vacation and sick pay that is expected i o  be liquidated with expendable available 
financial resources is reported as an expenditure and a fund 1iabiIity of the governmental fund that 
will pay it. Amounts not expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources 
are reported in the general long-term debt account group. No expenditure is reported for these 
amounts. 

- I 3 -  



CITY OF QWlNCY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,1998 

C. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued) 

7. Long-term Obligations 

The City reports long-term debt of governmental funds at face value in the general long-term debt 
account group. Certain other governmental fund obIigations not expected to be financed with 
current available financial resources are also reported in the general long-term debt account group. 
Long-term debt and other obIigations financed by proprietary funds are reported as liabilities in the 
appropriate funds. 

For proprietary fund types, bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred 
and amortized over the Iife of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are 
reported net of the appIicabIe bond premium or discount. Issuance costs are reported as deferred 
charges . 

8. FundEquity 

Reservations of fund balance represent amounts that are not appropriable or are legally segregated 
for a specific purpose. Reservations of retained earnings are limited to outside third-party 
restrictions. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to 
change. The proprietary fund's contributed capital represents equity acquired through capital grants 
and capital contributions from developers, customers or other funds. 

9. Other Assets 

Other assets include $10,605 of unamortized loan costs which relate to the issuance of Revenue 
Bonds. The original bond issue costs of $14,567 are being amortized using the straight-line method 
over the term of the bond issue (41 years). 

10. Memorandum Only-Total Columns 

Total columns on the general purpose financial statements are captioned as "memorandum only" 
because they do not represent consolidated financial information and are presented only to facilitate 
financial analysis. The columns do not present information that reflects financial position, results 
of operations or cash flows in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Interfund 
eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data. 
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CITY OF QULNCY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANClAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,1998 

D. STEWARDSKIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABLITY 

A. Budgetary Information 

The City Charter Section 5.09 through 5.12 specifies the budget procedures. A brief description is 
as follows: 

I .  The City Manager is responsible for preparation and submission of a proposed budget to 
the Commission prior to September 30. The budget includes proposed expenditures and 
the means to finance them. 

2. Public hearings are held to obtain taxpayer comments. 

3. On or before the last day of the fiscal year, the budget is adopted by ordinance. 

4. The City Manager is authorized to transfer part of all of any unencumbured appropriation 
balance among programs within a department, office or agency. Upon written request by 
the City Manager, the Commission, by ordinance, may transfer part or all of any 
unencumbered appropriation balance from one department, office or agency to another. 

5. Budgets are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

B. Deficit Retained Earnings 

The Refuse Fund’s deficit balance in retained earnings of $427,362 is the result of revenues 
inadequate to cover expenses in current and prior fiscal years. This deficit retained earnings is 
offset by contributed capital. 

C, Deficit Fund Balance 

The special revenue’s deficit fund balance of $1,507 is the result of revenues inadequate to cover 
expenses in the current year. This deficit fund balance will be offset by available fund balance in 
other funds. 

III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS 

A. Deposits and Investments 

At year end, the City’s canying amount of deposits was $2,636,462 and the bank balance was 
$2,921,629. Of the bank balance, the City’s deposits (including certificates of deposit) are entirely 
covered by Federal depository insurance or by collateral held by the City’s custodial bank which is 
pledged to a state trust fund that provides security for amounts held in excess of FDIC coverage. 
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CITY OF QUnUCY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FI"CL4.L STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,1998 

B. Receivables 

Receivables as of year end, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as 
fo 1 lows : 

Special 
General Revenue Enterprise Total 

Receivables: 
Accounts $ 68,682 $ $ 1,773,252 $ 1,841,934 
Less: Allowance for 

uncollectibles 472,775 472.775 
Net total receivables w s w m  

C. Fixed Assets 

Activity in the general fixed assets account group for the City for the year ended September 30, 
1998, was as follows: 

Balance Balance 

1997 Additions Retirements 1998 
October 1, September 30, 

Land $ 1,428,444 $ 58,585 $ - $ 1,487,029 
Buildings 1,024,226 1,024,226 
Improvements other than 

buildings 7,s 13,45 I - 7,813,451 
Vehicles, furniture and 

Total general fixed assets s I 3 2  1 71 46 $ 333577 -3izLaLU 
equipment 2,946,025 174,992 43.477 3,077,540 

The foIlowing is a summary of proprietary fund type fixed assets for the City at September 30, 
1998: 

Land 
Improvements 
Equipment and other 
Buildings 
Construction in process 

Less: Accumulated depreciation 
Total fixed assets 

Enterprise 
Funds 

$ 209,913 
7,35 1,175 
1,365,135 

10,498,469 
136.450 

19,561,142 
8556,098 

3LLLQuW 

. -  . +- 

.,. I d  
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,1998 

D. Interfund Receivables and Payables 

The composition of interfund balances as of September 30, 1998, is as follows: 

Due from Due to 
other funds other funds 

Governmental Funds: 
General Fund 

Proprietary Funds: 
Water Fun d 
Electric Fund 
Landfill Fund 

Fiduciary Funds: 
Municipal Firemen's Pension Trust 

E. General Long-term Debt 

General Long-rerm Liabilities 

$ $ 468,515 

25,074 

19,398 
334,702 

193,960 15,675 
m m  

The foIlowing is a summary of the changes in amounts payable in the general long-term debt 
account group for the City for the year ended September 30, 1998: 

Balance Balance 

1997 Additions Reductions 1998 
October 1, September 30, 

Capital leases payable $ 20,747 $ - S 10,547 !§ 10,200 , 

r -  Notes payable 685,270 166,308 5 18,962 ::> : 
J. -r: 

Compensated absences 173,859 2 1.504 152,355 m $ L E u s ~  



CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,1998 

E. General Long-term Debt (Continued) 

I. Noies Payable 

Notes payable at September 30, 1998, is comprised of the following: 

8.00% note pa table to individual in quarterly 
installments o? $20,095 through November 
2004, collateralized by land $ 392,289 

5.50% note pa able to bank in annual payments 

by fire truck 
of $133,570 t K rough May 1999, collateralized 

126.673 

m 
Maturities of notes payable for the next five years are as follows: 

Amount 

1999 
2000 
200 1 

$ 177,153 
54,623 
59,161 
64,02 I 
69,298 
94,706 :.- . .- . - -  Thereafter 

2. Capital Leases 

Capital leases payable at September 3 0, 1998, are comprised of the following: 

9.84% capital iease pa able to Corporation in 

through February 2000, collateralizef by two 
copiers 

monthly installments o 7 $608 includin interest 

$ 9,076 

7.01% capital lease a able to corporation in 
monthly ayments o !4 394 inciudin interest 
through becember 1998, collaterafized by 
computer equipment 1.124 - 

The future minimum lease obli ations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments 
as of September 30, 1998, is as f ollows: 

Amount 

1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 

Total minimum lease payments 
Less current amouvt representing interest 
Present value of m~nimum lease payments 

$ 8,428 
2,430 - 

- 
10.858 

'65 8 zzzEza 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,1998 

F. Enterprise Funds Long-term Debt 

1. Note Payable 

Note payable at September 30, 1998, is comprised of the following: 

1.28% note payable to government agency, 
semi-annual payments of $1 1,600 plus interest, 
collateralized by revenues from the operation of 
the water and sewer systems 

Maturities of note payable are as follows: 

I999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 

Thereafter 

* 

23,200 
23,200 
23,200 
261,600 

Amount 

See Note IV.(E). Subsequent Events for discussion of amendment to the loan agreement of the 
note payable. 

2. Water Revenue Bonds 

Long-term liabilities at September 30, 1998, is comprised of the following: 

$950,000 Water Revenue Bonds payable in 
annual installments ranging from $7,000 to 
$63,000 through September 2028, plus interest 
at 6.25% coIIateraIized by operating income 
before depreciation of the water, sewer, electric 
and gas system 

Interest expense for the enterprise fund for the year ended September 30, 1998 was $56,000. 

.- . -. .-. i 

. .  
. ;. 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMXNTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,1998 

Future debt service requirements, including principal and interest, on bonded debt are as follows: 

Year Amount 

1999 
2000 
200 1 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
202 I 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
202s 
Total 

$ 65,375 
65,750 
66,063 
65,3 12 
65,563 
65,750 
65,875 
65,93 8 
65,938 
65,875 
65,750 
65,563 
66,3 13 
65,93 8 
66,500 
65,93 8 
66,3 13 
66,563 
66,688 
66,688 
66,563 
66,3 13 
66,93 8 
67,3 75 
67,625 
67,688 
67,563 
68,250 
67,688 
66.93 8 

Ll&zua 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,1998 

rv. OTHER INFORMATION 

A. Contingent Liabilities 

Grant Programs-Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and 
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the Federal government. Any disallowed claims, 
including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, 
if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time 
although the City expects amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

Litigation-The City is involved in pending lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is 
not presently determinable, in the opinion of management, potential claims from litigation against 
the City not covered by insurance, wouid not materially affect the financial position of the City. 

Contamination Assessment-During the fiscal year ended 1991 , contamination was noted in 
several of the City's closed landfill cells. The City contracted with local engineers to provide 
contamination assessment and assist in the clean-up. The engineers have indicated that clean-up 
costs could approximate $200,000. 

The sewer system is currently operating under a provisional permit from the State of Florida 
Department of Environmental Protection (DEP). The permit establishes a schedule that will allow 
the City to fully comply with Chapter 403, Florida Statutes and rules of DEP relating to waste water 
treatment plant upgrades by December 1, 1999. Management estimates that upgrades on 
construction of new waste water treatment facilities will approximate $3 million. Funding is 
expected to come from low interest governmental ioans. 

B. Retirement Savings Plan 

The Retirement Savings Plan (RSP) of the City of Quincy, Florida is a defined contribution pension 
plan established to provide benefits at retirement for the employees. The City is required to 
contribute an amount equal to 12% of the base pay of each eligible participant. Plan provisions and 
contribution requirements are estabjished and may be amended by the City of Quincy, Florida 
Commission. 

C.  Police and Firemen's Supplemental Pension Plan (PFSP) 

(a) Plan Membership-AI1 of the City's full-time police officers and firefighters hired under the 
age of 50 are eligible to participate in the Police and Firemen's Supplementary Pension Plan 
(PFSP), a single-employer, defined benefit pension pian. PFSP provides retirement, disability and 
death benefits to plan members. The following brief description is provided for general information 
purposes only. Participants should refer to Ordinance 72-541 of the City of Quincy, Florida and the 
Summary Plan Description for more complete information. 

-21 - 



CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, I998 

C. Police and Firemen’s Supplemental Pension Plan (PFSP) (Continued) 

At October 1, 1997 the City of Quincy, Florida Police and Firemen‘s Supplemental Pension Plan 
membership consisted of: 

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving 
benefits and terminated employees entitled to 
benefits but not yet receiving them. 

Employees of the City by status were as follows: 

1L 

Vested 36 

Nonvested - 17 

Total current employees - 53 

(b) Funding Policy-The City’s funding policy is to provide for periodic employee rates that are 
designed to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. The employees contribute a 
percentage of their covered payroll to the plan. The State of Florida also contributes to the Plan. 
The City is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund the PFSP using the 
actuarial basis of the plan. 

( c )  
1998, was zero. 

Annual Pension Cost-The City‘s contribution requirement for the year ended September 30, 

(d) Eligibility-A11 full-time Police OEcers and Firefighters. 

(e) Basic Compensation-Total cash compensation paid to the participant for services rendered. 

( f )  Final Monthly Compensation-The highest average total basic compensation during five 
successive calendar years out of the ten calendar years next preceding the earlier of date of 
termination or normal retirement. 

(8) 
employment to the earIier date of termination or normal retirement. 

Credited Service-Total number of years and completed months of service from date of 

(h) Normal Retirement Date-The first of the month coincident with or next following the 
earlier of (1) the date of attainment of age 60 and IO years credited service or (2) the completion of 
30 years of credited service. 

(i) 
years of credited service. 

Normal Retirement Benefit-l.7% of final monthly compensation multiplied by number of 

- 22 - 
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CITY OF QVINCY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,1998 

C. Police and Firemen’s Supplemental Pension Plan (PFSP) (Continued) 

6 )  Normal Beaefit Form--A Single Life Annuity. 

(k) Early Retirement-After the eariier of ( I )  attainment of age 55 and 15 years of credited 
service or (2) the completion of 25 ears of credited service. Benefit calculated as for normal 
retirement but based upon service anlcompensation as of date of early retirement and actuarially 
reduced using Social Security Early Retirement factors. The maximum of early retirement for any 
and each year is 6%. 

(I) 
years for credited service. 

Postponed Retirement-] .7% of final monthly compensation multiplied by the number of 

(m) Disability Retirement-Participants having I 0 or more continuous years of credited service 
and 10 years of contributions shall receive a disability benefit if they become totally and 
permanently disabled. Benefit is life annuity with the ten years certain - 

(i) Line of Duty Disability - Benefit is greater of: 
Accrued Pension 
42% of average monthly salary 

(ii) Non-Line-of-Duty DisabiIity - Benefit is the greater of: 
Accrued Pension 
25% of average monthly salary 

(n) Termination of Service-Vested ercentage of accrued deferred monthly retirement income 
at date of termination of employment. &sled percentage is 25% after five ears, increasing 5% per 

vestin prior to five years of credited service. The month 7 y retirement income will commence at 

participant dies rior to retirement, the death benefit is a life income with ten years certain, which 

year to 50% after ten years and then increasing by 10% per ear to 100% a K er 3 5 years. There is no 

norma f retirement date. Employees eligible for early retirement will be 100% vested. Ifa terminated 

can be provided \ y single-sum value at date of death of the deferred vested retirement income. 

(0 )  Pre-Retirement Death Benefit-A monthly income which can be provided by greater of: 

( i )  
(ii) The smaller of: 

Single-sum value of accrued deferred monthly retirement income at date of death, or 

12 times final monthly compensation at date of death, and 
100 times anticipated monthly retirement income at normal retirement. 

(p) Post Retirement Death Benefit-If participant has been receivine a retirement income, 
payments cease next preceding date of death unless an optional form of retirement was selected. If 
the participant has postponed retirement, the benefit is a monthly income which can be provided by 
the accumulation of interest to the date of death of the single-sum value of the normal retirement 
benefit using the actuarial assumptions for the postponed retirement benefit. 

(9) 
contribution by employees until April 1, 1994 and six and one-half percent thereafter. 

Contributions-Those received under Chapters 175 and 185, five and one-haIf percent 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,1998 

D. Risk Management 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the City carries commercial insurance. 

E. Subsequent Events (See Note 111. F.1.) 

The loan agreement for the note payable of the enterprise fund was amended in 1999. The amendment to 
the agreement has increased the estimated principle amount of the Ioan to $3,465,000. The new 
agreement provides for semi-annual payments due on or before March 15, 2001. In addition, the City 
must estabIish a loan repayment reserve account and deposit $96,334 into the account no later than 
September 15,2000. 

* -  . 7  . . .  
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
OFFICLALS 

SEPTEMBER 30,1998 

CITY COMMISSIONERS 

Keith Dowdell - Mayor 

E.W. Hinson 

Don Chesser 

Glendell Russ 

Carolyn G. Ford 

CITY MANAGER 

Anthony Powell 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

SEPTEMBER 30,1998 
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ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivafents 
Investments 
Receivables: 

Accounts, net 
Accrued interest 

Due from other funds 
Inventories 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

Fixed assets, net 
Other assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30,1998 

Tota l  Landfill Electric Gas Water Sewer Refuse 

$ 1,395,493 $ 
353.356 

922,578 

334,702 
7 I .356 

460,966 
3,283, I3 I 

24,57 I 

177,41 I $ - $  818.644 $ 
393,820 65,852 

1 11,453 59,770 44,774 

11,242 12.120 5.6 19 

57,391 
183,237 

543,408 2,795.927 3,724,173 
L 52 10,757 152 

113,7633 $ 

48.2 18 

10,700 

- $ 2,505.31 I 
8 13,028 

I 13.684 1,300,477 

334,702 
100,337 

57,39 1 
800,264 1,444,467 
647,705 1 I,005,044 

35,632 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30,1998 

(Cont hued) 

Electric Gas Water Sewer Refuse La nd fill Tota I 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

LiABlLlTlES 
Accounts payable and accrucd liabilities 
Payable from restricted assets: 

Revenue bonds, current portion 
Accrued interest payable 
Customer deposits 

Deferred revenues 
Due to other funds 
Revenue bonds, long-term portion 
Estimated landfill closure costs 
Con ti ngen t I iabi I i ties 
Notes payable 

Total liabilities 

EQUITY 
Contributions: 

From other governments 
From developers 

Retained earnings: 
Reserved for capital improvements 
Reserved for contingency and landfill 
Reserved for debt service 
Unreserved 

Total equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

$ 809,665 $ 4,558 s 64.718 S 70,688 $ 5,281 $ 84,125 $ 1,039,035 

460,966 

1,270,63 1 4,558 

10,000 
4.6 I 5  

25,074 
876,000 

980,407 

48,000 

33 1,200 
449,888 5,28 t 

44,386 11,456 706,004 1,777,063 594,762 
171,749 15,422 53,655 10,843 

I0,OOO 
4.6 1 5 

460,966 
74,927 122,927 
19,398 44,472 

876,000 
I,005,500 I,005.500 

200,000 200,000 
33 1,200 

1,383,950 4,094,7 I 5 

3, I33,67 i 
25 1,669 

57,39 I 
50,000 

1 18.622 

57.39 I 
800,264 850.264 

I 18,622 
5,359,387 1,206,050 1,2 181975 2,355,568 (427,362) (622,56 I 9,090,051 
5,575,522 1,232,928 2,147,256 4,200,865 167,400 177,703 1330 1,674 

172,681 $ 1,56l,653 $ 17,596,387 
w -  I----.- 
$ 6,846,153 $ 1,237,486 $ 3,127,663 $ 4,650,753 $ 
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Operating revenues 
Charges for services 

Operatin expenses 
Costs ofsales and services 
General and administrative 
Depreciation and amortization 
Taxes 
Treatnie tit 

Total operating cxpcnses 

CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES 

AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EAKNINGS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30,1998 

Total Land f i l l  Electric Gas Water Sewer Refuse 

$ 11,933,092 $ 1,570,694 $ 776,638 $ 622,254 $ 661,854 $ 1,378,055 $ 16,942,587 

7,694,678 869,637 
42436 I 99,736 
233,680 38,023 
2 12.07 I 4.368 

157,298 
132,92 I 
101,420 

1,502,657 I0.958.054 
123,088 45,520 32.626 85a,452 
14 1,909 13,376 24,363 552,77 I 

2 16-439 

637,324 96.460 

_. 

439,838 429,509 869:347 
8,564,990 I .O I I ,7G4 83 t ,477 790,966 696,220 1,559,646 13,455,063 

Operating income (loss) 3,368, I02 558,930 ( 5  4,839) ( 1 G8,7 12) (34,3 66)  (181,591) 3,4 8 7,5 24 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses) 
lntercst incanie 35,922 47,729 34,364 20,527 12,546 85.689 2 3 6.7 77 
interest cxpcnse (55,901) (55,901) 

Total nonoperating revenues (cxpenscs) 35,922 47,729 (2 1,537) 20,527 12,546 85,689 180,876 

Income before operating transfers 
0 erating transfers 

bperating transfers in 
Operatin transfers out 

Totaf operating transfcrs 

3,404,024 606,659 (76,376) ( 148,185) ( 2  1,820) (95,902) 3,668,400_ 

5,407 5,407 
(3,200,000) (4 00,000) (3,600,OOO) 
(3,200,000) (400,000) 5,407 (3,594,593) 

Net income (loss) 204,024 206,659 (76,376) ( 142,778) (2 1,820) (95,902) 73,807 

Retained earnings (deficit), 
beginning o f  year 

Retained earnings (deficit), 
end of year 

10,042,527 5,155,363 999,39 I 1,463,973 2,555,737 (405,542) 273,605 

I 

$ 5.359.387 $ 1.206.050 f 1.387.597 $ 2.412.959 $ (427.342) $ 177,703 $ IO, 1 16,334 
L 
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Fcdtrrl CrantorlPass Through Grantor/ 
State Cranlor/Prowam Title 

CITY OF QUINCY, FLOKIDA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FINANCIAL AWAlRDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,1998 

FEDERAL FlNANClAL ASSISTANCE 

(IS. Dcprrtmcnt or Justice 

Passed through Florida Department of Juvenile Justice 

African American Female “Rites of Passagc” 

Community Organizing Program 

Local Law Enforcement Block Grant 

US. Department or Ileslth and Iiumon Services 

Passed through Florida Department of Children arid Families 

Family Preservation and Support Services 

Total Federal Awards 

Federal 
CFDA Contract Progranr 

Number Number Amount Ex pcndit urcs 

16.540 47027 70.000 22.650 

16.548 470 14 I 19.496 60.378 

16.592 9GLD VX079 1 32.316 6.573 

93.556 5.000 3,615 

226.872 93.2 I6 



Fcderrl GranlorlPass Through Grantor/ 
State Grrn tor/FroPrrm Tillc 

CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FINANCIAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,1998 
(Continued) 

STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

Sti lc  of Florida, Ucparlmcnl of Environnicrilal I’roteclioe 

Corry Ficld Recreation Improvements 
Florida Recreation Devclopmcnt Assislalice Program* 

Slate or Florida, Dcpetlmcnt of Juvenile Justice 

Minority Over-Rcprescnlation* 
Minority Over-Represenlalion* 
Minority Over-Representation’ 

Community Juvenile Justice Partnership Grant* 
Community Juvenile Justice Partnership Grant* 

Stale of Florida, Depnrtmcnl of Community A W r s  
Evaluation and Appraisal Report Assistance 

Total Stale Awards 

Total Financial Awards 

Fcderrl 
CFDA Contract Program 

Number Number Amount Exocndi tures 

-- F9634 

-- 98-DK-IG-02 
-03-02-030 

s 73.875 

55,357 
3 1,043 
55.357 

141.757 

3 I SO0 
3 5.000 
66.500 

14.068 

296,200 

s- 

$ 6.439 

10.994 
28,123 
4,400 

43.5 I 7 

7.615 
25.23 I 
32.846 

10,55 I 

93,353 

Lxza 
I. Basis of Presentation 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of financial awards iiicludes thc Federal award activity of the City of Quincy, Florida, and is presented on tlie accrual 
basis of accounting. The infomiation in this schedule is  presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-1 33, Audits of Stales, Local 
Goverrtmenfs, arid Non-Profit UrgunitaEions. Therefore, sottie amounts presented in this schedule may differ froin amounts presented in, or used in tlie 
preparation of, the financial statements. 

*Indicates a State of Ftorida Grants and Aids Appropriation. 
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JAMES MOORE & C O .  
- CERTIFIED P U B L I C  A C C O U N T A N T S  

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FKNANCLAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED mi ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT A UDXTING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable C i v  Commission, 
City of Quincy, Florida: 

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of Quincy, Florida, as of and for the 
year ended September 30, 1998, and have issued our report thereon dated September 3, 1999. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Governmenf Auditing Sfandards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. 

Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Quincy, Florida’s general purpose 
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards which are described below: 

A. Grant Reporting 

We noted during our audi& that City of Quincy, Florida’s quarterly financial status reports, that are 
required to be filed with the various grantors, did not agree with the City’s financial records. We 
recommend that these reports be reconciled to the financial data. Once this has been completed, we 
recommend that the City Manager be provided the grant reports, supporting documentation and City 
financial reports to verify that the financial status reports agree to the financial records. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Quincy, Florida‘s internal control over 
financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our 
opinion on the general purpose financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control 
over financia1 reporting. However, we noted certain matters involving the internal control over financial 
reporting and its operation that we consider to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve 
matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the 
internal control over financial reporting that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the City of Quincy, 
Florida’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data consistent with the assertions of 
management in the general purpose financial statements. Reportable conditions are described below: 
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A. Prompt Bank Reconciliations 

General ledger and bank balances should be reconciled promptly to furnish current proof that all 
transactions in the bank accounts have been recorded. Bank statements are not being reconciled 
timely, nor are they currently being reconciled to the general ledger balance. We have reconciled 
the September 30, 1998 bank reconciliation with September 30, 1998 general ledger. We 
recommend the accounting department promptly reconcile all months since October 1, 1998, to the 
current year general ledger. Once this is completed we recommend the accounting department 
provide a reconciliation report to the City Manager as part of the monthly reporting process. This 
report should be reviewed by the City Finance Director and signed as verification that the bank 
reconciliation and general ledger are in agreement. 

B. General Fixed Assets 

The City periodically takes a physical inventory of property and equipment used in both its 
enterprise operations and in general government. This physical inventory serves to account for the 
physical existence of assets and allows for updating of the related fixed assets records. 

We noted during our audit for the current year, the fixed asset inventory was not reconciled to the 
property records. We recommend the City implement the following suggestions related to fixed 
assets: 

I .  Take a physical inventory of all property and equipment including listing the ID#, serial #, 
condition and location of the item. This inventory then should be compared to the City 
property records and differences should be communicated to the City Manager or City 
Finance Director for proper disposition. 

2. After the property records are updated and reconciled, a report should be made annually to the 
City Commissioners noting any discrepancies between the physical inventory and the detail 
property records. 

We believe implementation of the foregoing recommendations will increase the control over 
safeguarding of property and equipment maintained by the City. 

C. Recordkeeping 

The City of Quincy, Florida is required to maintain proper accounting systems and procedures as 
stated in Florida Statutes 11.46(3). This system should provide any user, upon request, up-to-date 
balances in all accounts under the City's charge, such as cash balances, receivables, and due 
from/to accounts. During the course of the audit, we noted corrections needed to various City 
financial records. These items required us to make numerous corrections to the City's records. 

- ,  
x- .. - .  

We recommend the City Manager be provided with detail triai balances, bank reconciliations and 
financial statements for review by the 15* date following the end of the month. 
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A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control 
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be 
material in relation to the general purpose financial statements being audited may occur and not be 
detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily 
disclose all matters in the internal control that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not 
necessarily disclose a11 reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses. 
However, we believe reportable conditions A., B., and C. described above are material weaknesses. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Commission, the Auditor General of 
the State of Florida and other regulatory agencies, and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified users. 

Tallahassee, Florida 
September 3, 1999 
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JAMES MOORE & C O .  
CERTIFIED P U B L I C  ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON EXAMINATION OF MANAGEMENT’S 
ASSERTION ABOUT COMPLIANCE WITH SPECIFXED REQUIREMENTS 

To the Honorable City Commission, 
City of Quincy, Florida: 

We have examined management’s assertion about City of Quincy, Florida’s compIiance with the 
allowable cost requirements established in the grant agreements applicable to the state grants and aids 
appropriations identified on schedule of expenditures of financial awards for the year ended September 
30, 1998, included in the accompanying Management Assertion Report. Management is responsible for 
City of Quincy, Florida‘s compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on management’s assertion about the City of Quincy, Florida’s compliance based on our examination. 

Our examination was made in accordance with attestation standards estabJished by the American Institute 
of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis, evidence about 
City of Quincy, Florida’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as 
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our examination provides a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal determination on City of Quincy, 
Florida’s compliance with specified requirements. 

In our opinion, management’s assertion that City of Quincy, Florida complied with the aforementioned 
requirements during the fiscal year ended September 30, 1998, is fairly stated, in all material respects. 

:+ - 
. “ .  . .  

- ._ .- ~ 

Tat lahassee, Florida 
September 3, I999 
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THE CITY OF QUINCY 

AL4X;AGEMEK'T'S ASSERTION REPORT 

I, Anthony A. Powell, hereby assen that ihe City of Quincy, Florida complied with allowable cost 
requirements of the grants and aids appropriations identified on the anached Schedule of Expenditures of 
Financial Awards during the fiscal year ended September 30, 1998. 

7'- 3 *pp 

.. - . 
I -  

Date I 
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jAMES MOORE & C O .  
CERTIFIED P U B L I C  ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ MANAGEMENT LETTER REQUIRED BY CHAPTER 10.550, 
RULES OF THE AUDITOR G E N E U L  

To The Honorable City Commission, 
City of Quincy, Florida: 

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of City of Quincy, Florida, as of and for the 
fiscal year ended September 30, 1998, and have issued our report thereon dated September 3, 3 999. 

We have issued our Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance and on Internal Control over Financial 
Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards dated September 3, 1999. Disclosures in that report, if any, should be considered in 
conjunction with this management letter. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Siandards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Additionally, our audit was conducted in accordance with the provisions of 
Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, which govern the conduct of local governmental entity 
audits performed in the Stare of Florida and require that certain items be addressed in this letter. 

The Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.554( ] ) ( e ) ]  .> require that we comment as to whether or not 
irregularities reported in the preceding annual financial audit report have been corrected. There were no 
irregularities disclosed in the preceding annual financial audit report. 

The Rules of the Auditor Genera! (Section 10.554( 1)(3)2.) require that we comment as to whether or not 
the recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit report have been followed. All the 
recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit report have been corrected as reported in 
the Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance and on lntema! Control Over Financial Reporting 
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards. 

As required by the Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.554(1)(e)3.) the scope of our audit included 
a review of the provisions of Section 21 8.503( l) ,  Florida Statutes, “Determination of Financial 
Emergency.” In connection with our audit, we determined that the City of Quincy, Florida, is not in a 
state of financial emergency as described by Section 21 8.503( l ) ,  Florida Statutes: 

As required by the Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.554( l)(f)4.) we determined that the annual 
financial report for the City of Quincy, Florida, for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1998, was filed 
with the Department of Banking Finance pursuant to Section 218.32, Florida Statutes, and is in 
agreement with the annual financial audit report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1998. 
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The Rules of the Auditor General (Sections 10.554( l)(f)6.,7.,8.,9.) require disclosure in the management 
letter of the following matters if not already addressed in the auditors’ report on the internal controI and 
compliance: recommendations to improve financial management, accounting procedures, and internal 
controls; violations of laws, rules, and regulations which may or may not materially affect the financial 
statements; illegal or improper expenditures which may or may not materially affect the financial 
statements; improper or inadequate accounting procedures (e.g. the omission of required disclosures for 
the financial statements); failures to properly record financial transactions; and other inaccuracies, 
irregularities, shortages, and defalcations discovered by the auditor. Our audit disclosed matters required 
to be disclosed by Rules of Auditor General (Sections 10.554( 1 )(f)4.,7.,8.,9.) as follows: 

A. Unrecorded Liabilities 

The City is not following careful practice in recording all purchases and other liabilities in the proper 
accounting period. Liabilities should be recorded in the accounting period in which the goods or services 
are received raher than the following period when the invoice or statement is received. The current 
practice results in some distortion of monthly financial statements and necessitates an undue amount of 
work in the course of the year-end audit to locate and enter adjustments for important unrecorded 
liabilities. We suggest that the City revise its approach in vouchering purchases by recording them in the 
period in which the liability is incurred. 

B. Record Storage and Retrieval 

During our audit we noticed that accounting records frequently could not be located when needed. The 
causes of the problem appeared to be a) lack of a clearly specified system for filing records, b) failure of 
those who removed records from the files to indicate who took the record, c> failure to return the record 
to the files or misfiling it when it was returned, and d) lack of specified policies for removing prior year 
records from the files to a designated storage space. The result was that employees spent nonproductive 
time searching for needed documents. This condition could also present problems when documents are 
needed in support of other reports subject to audit by us or other governmental agencies. We recommend 
that the following steps be taken: 

Decide on a systematic manner of filing documents, e.g., numbered invoices, receiving reports, 
etc., consecutively by number, vendor bills alphabetically by vendor name, journal entries by 
month, and so on. Describe the system in the accounting manual or post a description on the 
filing cabinets or storage room so that employees wilI know how to find and refile documents. 

Institute use of “sign-out” cards to be filled out when a document is removed, showing who 
took the record. The card should be placed in the file in place of the removed document. 

Establish a policy specifying which records should be retained permanently and which records 
should be kept only for a given period before being destroyed and how long that period should 
be. Also, decide on when records should be removed from more accessible files to other storage 
areas. For example, some cities keep the current and prior year records in the accounting 
department or in storage rooms on the city’s premises and store older records in off-premises 
warehouses. Assign personnel the responsibility to periodically clean out the files in accordance 
with the established poiicy. 

. - - _  1 ..‘ = 
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C. Accounting Manual 

We noted that the City does not have an up to date accounting procedures manual. There may be an 
assumption that because the City’s accounting system is relatively simple and accounting personnel have 
direct and easy access to the finance director when questions arise, there is no need for a manual. 
However, written procedures, instructions, and assignments of duties will prevent or reduce 
misunderstandings, errors, ineficient or wasted effort, duplicated or omitted procedures, and other 
situations that can result in inaccurate or untimely accounting records. A well-devised accounting manual 
can also help to assure that all similar transactions are treated consistently, that accounting principles 
used are proper, and that records are produced in the form desired by management. A good accounting 
manual should aid in the training of new employees and possibly allow for delegation to other employees 
of some accounting functions that management performs. It will take some time and effort for 
management to develop a manual; however, we believe this time will be offset by time saved later in 
training and supervising accounting personnel. Also, in the process of the comprehensive review of 
existing accounting procedures for the purpose of developing the manual, management might discover 
procedures that can be eliminated or improved to make the system more efficient and effective. Should 
management desire, we would be pleased to develop an accounting manual as a separate engagement. 

D. Journal Entry Approval and Support 

Our review of the general journal entries revealed that there is a lack of proper approval by responsible 
employees. In many instances, entries were prepared and approved by the same individual. We suggest 
that adoption of a policy whereby journal entries will be approved by the Finance Director. We also 
noticed that the explanations accompanying the entries were inadequate in many instances. AI1 journal 
entries should be accompanied by ful l  explanation and by adequate supporting data. This will not only 
save time in adjusting the accounts to prepare interim financial statements, but will also save accounting 
fees. 

E. City Employee Pension Plan 

Monthly or quarterly statements obtained from the investment trustee should be reconciled to employer 
contributions per the general ledger. This will furnish proof that the investment trustee has appropriately 
recorded contributions made by the City. No attempt at reconciling the City’s contributions to that 
recorded by the trustee is currently being made. We suggest the employer contributions per the general 
ledger be reconciled to the trustee statements either on a monthly or quarterly basis. This procedure will 
quickly identify any mistakes on the City’s and investment trustee’s accounting records. 

F, Management Reports 

One of the accounting department’s prime responsibilities is the preparation of accurate, timely financial 
statements and accounting reports. The need for such reports was not so apparent when the City was 
smaller. However, with rapid growth and pubiic awareness of the City, accurate reports which evaluate 
the City’s financial position and results of operations on a current basis are imperative so that 
management decisions can be timely and more effective. 
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Other cities have found that reporting systems have proved to be effective as management tools when the 
following requirements are met: 

I .  Reports are prepared quickly after the end of the accounting period. 

2. Actual results are compared with predetermined budgets and prior year results. 

3. Reports present departmental revenues and expenditures and/or expenses. 

4. Reports present cash flow information to show by fund, the amount of cash at the beginning of 
the period, additions to cash for the period, reductions in cash for the period and ending cash 
balance. 

G.  Computer System Documentation and Training 

There is a general lack of computer system user and operator documentation. Without proper 
documentation, management is not assured that its policies and procedures are being carried out. Since 
the City has now hired a new finance director, we recommend the City contract with the City's 
accounting software provider for additional training and consulting. We believe the efficiency and 
knowledge that would be acquired exceeds the initial cost commitment needed for training. 

H. The Year 2000 Issue 

The Year 2000 Issue results from the inability of a computer program to process year-date data 
accurately beyond the year 1999. Except in recently introduced Year 2000 compliant programs, computer 
programs consistently have included abbreviated dates (that is, dates that excluded the first two digits of 
the year) with the assumption that those two digits would always be 19. Unless corrected, that shortcut 
may create widespread problems on January 1, 2000. On that date, some computer programs may 
recognize the date as January 1, 1900, and either process data incorrectly or stop processing it altogether. 
The Year 2000 Issue may affect computer applications before January I ,  2000, when systems currently 
attempt to perform calculations into the Year 2000. Furthermore, some computer programs use several 
dates in the year 1999 (such as 01/01/00, 09/09/99 and 1213 1/99) to mean something other than the date. 
As systems process data using those dates, they may produce erratic results or stop functioning. The Year 
2000 Issue presents yet another challenge: the algorithm used in some computer programs for calculating 
leap years may be unable to detect that the Year 2000 is a leap year. Therefore, systems that are not Year 
2000 compliant may produce incorrect results. 

We recommend that the City begin to take immediate steps to identify, modify, and test all systems that 
may be impacted by the Year 2000 Issue. In addition, the City should monitor its progress to ensure 
compliance before systems begin to fail, which may be evident before January 1,2000. If the City fails to 
take timely and appropriate action, it may experience costly and significant computer program failures, 
which could prevent it from performing its routine processing activities. Depending on the extent of 
system failures, noncompliance could be catastrophic for the City. 

In addition, the City should implement verification procedures to test the accuracy of infomation 
received from its vendors, service providers, bankers, customers, and other third-party organizations with 
whom it exchanges date-dependent information to ensure that those organizations also are Year 2000 
compliant. The City shoutd satisfy itself that its operations or cash flows will not be affected by problems 
in those organizations relating to the Year 2000 Issue. 
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The Rules of the Auditor General (Sections 10.554 (1) ( e )  IO. )  also require that the name or official title 
and legal authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be 
disclosed in the management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The City of 
Quincy, Florida included no component units that are required under generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

This management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the City Commission and the 
Auditor General of the State of Florida and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other 
than these specified users. 

Tallahassee, Florida 
September 3, 1999 
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CITY OF QLrlNCY 
CORRECTIVE ACTION P L ~  
1997-1 998 FINANCIAL STATEMENT ALTDIT 
SEPTEMBER 1999 

The Ciry is in the initial sages of implement~ng purchase order entry by our Purchasins Depanmenz. Upon 
completion all purchase orders will be entered into the purckie order module of the City's financial 
information sysrem. When the purchase orders are entered a liability will be recorded in the general ledger. 
-4s a result of this change liabilities will be recorded when they are incurred. 

RECORD STORAGE .4ND RETRIEVAL 

The City will develop a fiIin_e system that will designare the proper place and order to file all financial 
records. The s p e m  will be documented in the accounting manual that will be distributed to all applicable 
employees. The filing system will also be posted in record storage areas. The s t a i n  each designated 
filing area will be responsible for ensuring that records are relumed promptly and are re-filed in the proper 
place. "Sign-out" cards will be used when possible. Additionally, a policy regarding the lengh of time 
records will be stored in the designaid areas prior to being moved to offsite storage wi11 be developed. 

Tbe City will develop, or contract to develop an accounting manua1. 

JOURNAL ENTRY APPROVAL AYD SUPPORT 

-411 journal entries wil1 be reviewed and approved by the Finance Director. The Director will ensure ha t  
the narrative description and supponing doamentarion are suffcient. 

CITY EMPLOYEE PENSION PLAN 

The quarterly Statements recehtd from the investment m n e e  will be reconciled to ihe general ledzer. 

MAKAGEMENT REPORTS 

Departmental expendirurdexpense repons are currently distributed to the depmment managers on a 
biweekly schedule. Afier the bank reconciliations have been bought up to date, the  audit adjustments have 
been entered and the automated general led~er has been properly serup, monthly financial repons will be 
prepared on a timely basis. 

COMPUTER SYSTEM DOCUMENTATION AND TRAIXXG 

The City has scheduled 3 days of training during a visit by rhe software provider in 1999. 

, -  

. -  

During h e  nex? fiscal year the newly created General S&ces Department will reconcile tbe quarterly 
financial starus reports IO the City's financial records. The reconciled financial repom and the supporring 
docmentanon will be provided to the City Manager on a quarterly basis. 
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CITY OF QLWCY 
CORRECmtE ACTIOX PL4W 

SEPTEMBER 1959 
1997-1 998 FI”-L?KL4L STATEMEKT AUDIT 

PROMT BAKK RECONCILhTIOXS 

The City is currently in the process of completing bank reconciliations. Once ihe bank reconciliations are 
complete, the City Manager will be provided with the bank reconciliation no later than the fifteenrh day of 
the follou4ng monrh. 

GEXER4L FEUD ASSETS 

The Urilities Department is currently preparing to conduct a physical count of the warehouse invenrory. 
General Senices will be conducring the physical inventory for all orher items. When the TWO counts are 
complete the appropriate adjustments will be made in the accounting records and a repon will be given to 
rhe City Commission. 

A s  the accounts and related reports are brou3t  current and timely reponing becomes attainable, h e  City 
Manager will be provided with a detailed trial balance, bank reconciliation and financial Statement by the 
fifteenth day following month end. 

YEAR 2000 

The City has currently convened its’ financial, fire control, and building, planning and engineering sysrems 
to 2000 ready program with the exception of Fixed Assets and Warehouse Inventory. These two modules 
are scheduled for conversion in late November or early December 1999. The City’s law enforcement 
sofbare is scheduled for conversion to 2000 ready sofiware in October 1999. 

. ._ 
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J A M E S  MOORE & C O .  
C E R T I  F l E D  P U B L I C  ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Honorable City Commission. 
City of Quincy, Florida: 

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the City of Quincy, Florida, 
as of and for the year ended September 30, 1999, as listed in the table of contents. These general purpose 

,I financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Quincy, Florida's management. Our 
/' responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in  accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards 
appIicable to financial audits contained in Government Audiring Stunrlnrds, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the eeneral purpose financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the ueneral purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting 
principles used an8 significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall general 
purpose financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis 'for our 
opinion. 

I n  our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the City of Quincy, Florida, as of September 30, 1999, and the results 
o f  Its operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the year then ended in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles. 

In accordance with Government Audifing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 3, 
2000, on our consideration of City of Quincy, Florida's internal control over financial reporting and our 

rovisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be 

in considering the resuits of our audit. 

Our audit was performed for the purpose of formino an opinion on the general purpose financial 
statements taken as a whole. The accompanying scheaute of expenditures of financial awards and the 
accompanying additional information listed in the table of contents are presented for pu oses of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose financial statements o 'p City of 
Quincy, Florida. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures a plied in the audit of 
the general urpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in a P I material respects in 
relation to t 1 e general purpose financial statements taken as a whole. 

The required supplementary information on paces 30-31: is not a required part of the  general purpose 
financial statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accountiniz 
Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures. which consisted principally of inquiries of 
management resarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. 
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. n 

Tallahassee. Florida 
August 3,2000 

U 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 

SEP'I'EMUER 30,1999 
(Coritiriued) 

COMIIINED IIALANCE SIIEET -- ALL FUND TYPES ANI) ACCOUNT GROUPS 

Prolirielary Fiduciary Accourit C r o u p s  C o v e r  n menta I 
Fund Types Fund T y p e  Fuiid T y p e  General C en era I Totals 

I ,o (1 g- t e r  111 (hl e m  o r a  11 d u iti Special Trust Fixed  
Genera l  Revenue Enterprise Funds Assets Debt Oaly) 

1.IA HI LIT1 ES, EQU I'll' AN I) OTI I E R CRE U ITS 

I ie Idi t ies 
Accouiits payable and accrued expenses 
Coin ensntetl absences payable 
1'3 d L t :  front reslriclsd assets: 

&rrent portion of reveiwr bonds payable 
Accrued interest on matured bonds payable 
Customer dcposils 

Ilefirred revenues 
Iht: to other fuiids 
t~evenue bonds pay able, I ong- term portion 
fisiiiiiatrd landlill closrire COSIS 
Conlingent liabilities 
Capital lease payablt: 
Notes p able 

t o t a ~  liabilities 

h uity anti other credits 
Iiivcstinsnt in gerirral liked assets 
('oil I r i ti 11 I io t i  s : 

IZetained earnings: 

Coritributd capital - ca ilal grarils 
Contrihuted capihl - c d e r  

IZescrved [or capital improvernents 
Reserved for coiitingsiicy arid laiidlill 
I k s e r v c d  for drht service 
lJnreserved 

1:uiid balances: 
lkszrved for eiiiployre relircriient 
llnreserved 

Total equity and other crsdi\s 

I oftll Liabililies, Equity amid Oflier Credits 

$ 292,160 $ 59,740 $ 1,187,498 $ 1,213 $ - $  - S 1,540,61 t 
20,944 139,288 160,232 

3O5,04 5 49, I 9 4  
4,553, I90 

5,150,395 108,934 

I1,OOO 
4,563 

426,227 
122,927 

5,256,823 
86 5,000 

I ,OO5,5OO 
200,000 

I ,983,95 I 
lt,084,433 

11,000 
4,563 

426,227 
477.166 

9,8 10,013 
865,000 

1,005,500 
200,000 

30,209 30.209 
3.1 I,XO') 2,325;760 
5 1 1,306 16,856,28 I 1,213 

14,328,167 14,328,167 

3,133,671 
25  1,669 

I -1 0,5 2 6 
84 1,098 
1 17,673 

8,824,275 

3,133,47 I 
25 1,669 

140,576 
84 1,098 
I 17,674 

8,824,275 

10,037,843 10,037,843 
( 177,727) (6,002) ( 183,729) 
( 177,727) (6,002) 13,308,913 10,037,843 14,328,167 37,w I, I94 

$ 4,972,668 $ 102,932 $ 24,393,344 $ 10,039,056 $ 14,328,167 $ 5 1  1,306 $ 54.347.475 
, 

The accornpanyirig notes to financial statements 
are an inlegral part of this statenlent. 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORLDA 
COMBINED STATEMENT OF FLEVEIWES, EXPEiWITURES AND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEiMBER 30,1999 
CH-QNGES LN F U N 3  BALANCES (DEFICIT) - ALL GOVEItlrMENTAL FUND TYPES 

Totals 
Special (Memorandum 

General Revenue Only) 

Revenues 
Taxes, licenses and permits 
Intergovernmental 
Other 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
General government 
Public safety 
Trans portat i on 
Human services 
Culture and recreation 
Physical environment 
Economic environment 

Total expenditures 

Deficiency of revenues 
over expend it u res 

S 1,041.942 S - s  1,04 1.942 
778,822 85,604 864,426 
879,668 27,274 906.942 

2,700,432 112,878 2,s  13,3 I O  

1,54 1,692 
3,249,395 
1,079,7 12 

38,887 
722,763 
38 1 .033 

78.875 
7,092,3 5 7 

I .54 1,693- 
97,457 3,346,852 

I ,079,7 12 
3 8,887 

24,045 746,808 
38 1,033 

35.057 113.932 
156,559 7,248,9 16 

(4,39 1,925) (43,68 1 ) (4,435,606) 

Other financing sources 
Sale of general fixed assets 34,138 34,138 
Operating transfers in 3.560.8 14 39,186 3.600.OOO 

Total other financing sources 3,594,952 39, I 86 3,634,138 

Deficiency of revenues and other 
financing sources over expenditures (796,973) (4,395) (80 1,468) 

Fund balances (deficit), beginning of year, as 3 70.673 ( 1,507) 369, I66 
previously reported 

Prior period adjustment 248,573 238,573 

Fund balances (deficit), beginning of year, as 6 19,346 ( 1,507) 6 17,739 
restated 

Fund balances, (deficit) end of year $ (177,727) $ (6,002) S’ ( 183,739) 

The accompanying notes to financial statements 
are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF QUnUCY, FLORIDA 
COMBINED STATEiMENT OF REWNUFS, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)- 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,1999 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - ALL BUDGETED GOVERiYiSIIENTAL FUND TYPES 

General Fund 
Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) Budget Actual 

Revenues 
Taxes, I icensrs and perm its 
Intergovernmental 

;’ Other 
Total revenues 

80.526 
895.500 778.822 ( I 16.678) 

t 5 1.436) 93 1.104 879.648 

s 961.116 $ 1.041.942 S 

2.758.020 2.700.432 (87.5 8 5 )  

, -  Expenditures 
General government 
Public safety 
Tran sponat I o n 
Human services 
Culture and recreation 
Physical environment 
Economic environment 

Tom1 expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Sale of general fixed assets 
Operating transfers in 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Deficiency of revenues and other 
financing sources over expenditures 

Fund balances. beginning of year. as previously reported 

Prior period adjustment 

Fund balances, beginning of year. as restated 

1.729.498 I .54 1.692 187,306 
3.637.39 I 3.349.395 387,996 
I ,  193.796 I .079.7 12 I l4.084 

4 1,398 38,887 2.51 I 
758.705 722.763 35.942 
542.494 381.033 161,461 
81.819 78.575 2.944 

7,985.10 I 7.092,357 892,744 

(5.197.081) (4.39 1.925) 805. I56 

30.120 34, I 38 4.0 18 
4.599.996 3.560.8 I4 (1.039.182) 
4.630. t I6 3.5 94.952 ( 1.03j.I64) 

(546.965) (796,973) (230.008) 

370.673 370,673 

248.373 248.573 

3 70.673 6 19.236 245.573 

Fund balances (deficit). end of !ear 
~~ 

5 (196.292) 5 (177.727) $ 18.565 

The accompanying notes to financial statements 
are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,1999 
EARNINGS - ALL PROPRIETARY F"D TYPES 

Operating revenues 
Charges for services $ 15.841.368 

Operating expenses 
Cost of sales and services 
General and administrative 
Depreciation and amortization 
Taxes 

.' Treatment 
Total operating expenses 

9,96233 5 
978,076 
581,429 
194,708 
659.398 

12,378,446 

Operating income 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

Income before operating transfers 

3,463,421 

(56,183) 

3.407.239 

Operating transfers 
Operating transfers out 

Net operating transfers 
(3,600,000) 
(3,600,OOO) 

Net loss 

Retained earnings, beginning of year 

( 192,76 1 

10,i 16,334 

Retained earnings, end of year S 9.923.573 

The accompanying notes to financial statements 
are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORTDA 

PENSION TRUST FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,1999 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS - 

Poiice and 
Fi re men 's 

Retirement Supplemental 
Savings Pension 

Plan Plan Total 

ADD ITIONS 
/ 

Contributions: 

Plan members 
. State of Florida 

Employer 
Total contributions 

i 

Investment income: 
Earnings 

TotaI Additions 

DEDUCTIONS 

Benefit payments 
Administrative expense 

Total Deductions 

Net increase 

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits 

Beginning of year 

End of year 

$ - $  90,203 $ 90.203 
1 18,196 118,196 

392.708 392,708 
392,708 20S,3 99 60 I , 107 

913,375 34 1,453 1,354,828 

1.306,053 544,852 1,855,935 

664,579 100,552 76j,13 1 
32.9 16 32.9 I6 

6643 79 233,468 798,047 

64 1 SO4 4 16,384 1,057,885 

5,108,376 3,87 1,382 8,97?,7 5 8 

$ 5,749.880 S 4,287,766 $ 10,037,646 

The accompanying notes to financial statements 
are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF QULNCY, FLORIDA 

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,1999 
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

COMBLNED STATElMENT OF CASH FLOWS-- 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Cash received from cusromers 
Cash paid to suppliers 
Cash paid to employers 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities 
Loans to other funds 

,, Operating transfers out 
Net cash used in noncapital financing activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities 
Principal payments on tong-term debt 
Procecds from long-term debt 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets 
Interest paid 

Net cash used in capital and related tjnancing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Sale of investments 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents. beginning of year 

9 15.710295 
( I 1.043.165) 

(6 10.930) 
4.056. I90 

( I .670.543) 
(3.600.00O 1 
(5.270.543) 

( 10.000) 
1,652.73 I 
(2.573.588) 

(55.3 75) 
(986.2 12) 

76.262 
76.262 

(2.123.303) 

2.562.702 

Cash and cash equivalents. end of year s 43 8.3 99 

Reconciliation of  operating income to net cash 
provided by operating activities 

Operating income 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to 

net cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Increase in accounts receivable 
Increase in inventories 
Increase in accounts payable and accrued t:.upe:ns~s 
Decrease in  utility deposits 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

S 3.463.422 

58 I .429 

(96.834) 
(26.495) 
169.407 
(34.73 9 1 

S 4.056.190 

The accompanying notes to financial statements 
are an integra1 part of this statement. 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,1999 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Reporting Entity 

The City of Quincy. Florida, is 3 municipality which operates under a commission-manager form of 
government. The City was incorporated in 1823 pursuant to a Special Act of the State of Florida 
Legisfature. Services provided by the City include public safety (police and fire), utility services 
(electric, water, sewer, gas, refuse collection and landfill), urban and economic development, 
highways and streets including pubtic improvements and other general government activities. 

i i B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation 

The accounts of the City are organized and operated on the basis of funds and account groups. A 
fund is an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Fund 
accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in 
demonstrating compliance with finance-related legal and contractual provisions. The minimum 
number of funds are maintained consistent with legal and managerial requirements. Account 
groups are a reporting device to account for certain assets and liabilities of the governmental funds 
not recorded directly in those funds. 

The City has the following fund types and account groups: 

Governmental funds are used to account for the City's general governmental activities. 
Governmental fund types use the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recognized when susceptible to accrual (ix., when they are "measurable and avaiiabie"). 
"Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means 
collectibie within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current 
period. The City considers all revenues available if they are collected within 60 days afier year end. 
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest 
on general long-term debt which is recognized when due. and certain compensated absences and 
claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with 
expendable available financial resources. 

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest are susceptible to accrual. Sales taxes 
collected and held by the State at year end on behalf of the City are also recognized as revenue. 
Other receipts and taxes become measurable and available when cash is received by the government 
and are recognized as revenue at that time. 

Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to 
accrual criteria are met. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the quaiifq ing 
expenditures have been incurred and ail other grant requirements have been met. 

- IO- 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCLAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,1999 

E. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation (Continued) 

Governmental funds include the following fund types: 

The general fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the 
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

The special revenue funds account for revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for 
specific purposes (not including expendable trusts). 

' Proprietary funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus and use 
the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. The City applies all applicable FASB 
pronouncements in accounting and reporting for its proprietary operations. Proprietary funds 
include the following fund type: 

Enferprise funds are used to account for those operations that are financed and operated in a manner 
similar to private business or where the Commission has decided that the determination of revenues 
earned, costs incurred andor net income is necessary for management accountability. 

Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent on behalf of 
others. Trust funds account for assets held by the City under the terms of a formal trust agreement. 

The pension Crust fund is accounted for in essentially the same manner as proprietary funds, using 
the same measurement focus and basis of accounting. The pension trust fund accounts for the 
assets of the City of Quincy, Florida's, Retirement Savings Pian and for the Police and Firemen's 
Supplemental Pension Plan. Employee and employer contributions are recognized in the period in 
which the contributions are due. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the terms of each plan. 

Account Groups. The generuljixed assets account group is used to account for fixed assets not 
accounted for in proprietary or trust funds. The general long-term debt account group is used to 
account for general long-term debt and certain other liabilities that are not specific liabilities of 
proprietary or trust funds. 

C. Assets, Liabilities and Equity 

I .  Deposits and Invesirnents 

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short- 
term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. 

State statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, commercial paper, 
corporate bonds, repurchase agreements and State Treasurer's Investment Pool. 

- I 1  - 



CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,1999 

C. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued) 

Investments are stated at fair value. 

The City is authorized by Chapter 166.26 1 Florida Statutes to invest in certain government secured 
or guaranteed instruments and the City Charter further restricts such investments to interest-bearing 
United States, state and local government bonds, City of Quincy revenue certificate bonds and 
paving and tax liens. AI1 investments are insured and held in the name of the City by its agent. 

2. Receivables and Puyables 

Transactions between funds that are representative of Iendingjborrowing arrangements outstanding 
at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "interfund receivabledpayables" (i.e., the 
current portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion 
of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due tdfrom 
other funds." 

All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibies. 

Ad valorem property tax revenue is recognized in the fiscal year for which tzxes are levied and 
available. Uncollected taxes are not accrued because such amounts are not measurable and 
available as of the balance sheet date. Taxes are billed and collected for the City by the County Tax 
Collector according to Florida Statute under the following calendar: 

Lien Date: January I 
Levy Date: October 1 
Due Date: November 1 
Delinquency Date: April 1 ,  of the following year 

3. InventoriedPrepaid Items 

Inventories are valued at cost using the first-idfirst-out (FIFO) method. The costs of governmental 
fund-type inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect cost applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as 
prepaid items. 

4. Restricted Assers 

Certain proceeds of the City's revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their 
repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited by 
applicable bond covenants. 

- 1 2 -  



CTTY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEiMBER 30,1999 

f - -  

C. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued) 

5. Fired Assets 

Fixed assets used in governmental fund types of the City are recorded in the general fixed assets 
account group at cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated fixed assets 
are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Assets in the general fixed assets 
account group are not depreciated. Interest incurred during construction is not capitalized on 
general fixed assets. 

Public domain (infrastructure) general fixed assets (e-g., roads, bridges, sidewalks and other assets 
that are immovable and of vaiue onIy to the City) are not capitalized. 

/ 

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend assets' lives are not included in the general fixed assets account group or capitalized in the 
proprietary funds. 

Property, piant and equipment in the proprietary funds of the City are recorded at cost. Property, 
piant and equipment donated to these proprietary fund type operations are recorded at their 
estimated fair vaiue at the date of donation. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized in proprietary funds as projects 
are constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of proprietary fund fixed assets is 
reflected in the capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of interest earned on the invested 
proceeds over the same period. 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated in the proprietary funds of the City using the straight 
line method over the following estimated useful lives ranging from 3 to 40 years. 

6. Compensuied Absences 

I t  is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay 
benefits. Vacation and sick pay is accrued when incurred in proprietary funds and reported as a 
fund liability. Vacation and sick pay that is expected to be liquidated with expendable available 
financial resources is reported as an expenditure and a fund liability of the govemmental fund that 
wi11 pay it. Amounts not expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources 
are reported in the general long-term debt account group. No expenditure is reported for these 
amounts. 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCLAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,1999 

C .  Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued) 

7. Long-term Obligations 

The City reports long-term debt of governmental funds at face value in the general long-term debt 
account group. Certain other governmental fund obligations not expected to be financed with 
current available financial resources are also reported in the general long-term debt account group. 
Long-term debt and other obligations financed by proprietary funds are reported as liabilities in the 
appropriate funds. 

For proprietary fund types, bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs. are deferred 
and amortized over the fife of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are 
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Issuance costs are reported as deferred 
charges. 

, 

8. FundEquity 

Reservations of fund balance represent amounts that are not appropriable or are legally segregated 
for a specific purpose. Reservations of retained earnings are limited to outside third-party 
restrictions. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to 
change. The proprietary fund's contributed capital represents equity acquired through capital grants 
and capital contributions from developers, customers or other funds. 

9. Oiher Assets 

Other assets include $9,875 of unamortized loan costs which relate to the issuance of Revenue 
Bonds. The original bond issue costs of S 14,567 are being amortized using the straight-line method 
over the term of the bond issue (4 1 years). 

10. Memorandum Only-Total Columns 

Total columns on the general purpose financial statements are captioned as "memorandum only" 
because they do not represent consolidated financial information and are presented only to facilitate 
financial analysis. The columns do not present information that reflects financial position, results 
o f  operations or cash flows in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Interfund 
eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this  data. 



CITY OF QUTNCY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEAMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,1999 

11. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIAiiCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

A. Budgetary Information 

The City Charter Section 5.09 through 5.12 specifies the budget procedures. A brief description is 
as follows: 

1 .  The City Manager is responsible for preparation and submission of a proposed budget to 
the Commission prior to September 30. The budget includes proposed expenditures and 
the means to finance them. 

2.  Public hearings are held to obtain taxpayer comments. 

3. On or before the iast day of the fiscal year, the budget is adopted by ordinance. 

4. The City Manager is authorized to transfer part of a11 of any unencumbured appropriation 
balance among programs within a department, office or agency. Upon written request by 
the City Manager, the Commission, by ordinance, may transfer part or all of any 
unencumbered appropriation balance from one department, office or agency to another. 

5 .  Budgets are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

€5. Deficit Retained Earnings 

The Refuse Fund's deficit balance in retained earnings of S579,478 is the result of revenues 
inadequate to cover expenses in current and prior fiscal years. This deficit retained earnings is 
offset by contributed capital. 

C. Deficit Fund Balance 

The general fund's deficit fund balance of $177,727 and the special revenue's deficit fund balance 
of $6,003, are the result of revenues inadequate to cover expenditures in the current year. This 
deficit fund balance will be offset by available retained earnings in other funds. 

111. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS -4ND ACCOUNT GROUPS 

A. Deposits and Investments 

At year end, the City's carrying amount of deposits was $1.676,083 and  the bank balance was 
$1,694,741. Of the bank balance. the City's deposits are entirely covered by Federal depository 
insurance or by collateral held by the City's custodial bank which is pledged to a state trust fund 
that provides security for amounts held in excess of FDlC coverage. 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,1999 

B. Receivables 

Receivables as of year end, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as 
fo I lows: 

General Enterprise Total 

Receivables: 
Accounts S 19,148 S 2,045,643 S 2,064,791 
Less: Allowance for 

uncot lecti bles 648,332 64 8,3 32 
Net total receivables $ 19,148 $ I , ?  97.31 1 $ 1,416,459 

CI Fixed Assets 

Activity in the general fixed assets account group for the City for the year ended September 30, 
1999, was as follows: 

Baiance Balance 

1998 Additions Retirements 1999 
October 1, September 30, 

Land $ 1,487,029 S $ S 1,487,029 
B u i 1 dings 1,024,226 63,61 I 1,087,83 7 
Improvements other than 

buildings 7,8 13,45 1 465,702 8,279, I53 
Vehicles, furniture and 

36,582 3,474. I 48 
s 36 58 $14,328,167 

equipment 3 .O 77.540 433.190 
Total general fixed assets $ 1  3.4O3.246 $2,503 2 

The following is a summary o f  proprietary fund tvpe fixed assets for the City at September 30, 
1999: 

Land 
Improvements 
Equipment and other 
Buildings 
Construction in process 

Less: Accumulated depreciation 
Total fixed assets 

Enterprise 
Funds 

$ 209,913 
6,935,650 
1,4 14,002 
I1,010,531 
2507,866 

22,077,962 
9,149,448 

$ ! 3,928.5 14 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINMCXAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,1999 

D. Interfund Receivables and Payables 

The composition of interfund balances as of September 30. 1999, is as follows: 

Govemmental Funds: 
General Fund 
Special Revenue 

Proprietary Funds: 
Water 
Electric 
Sewer 
Gas 
Refuse 
Landfill 

Fiduciary Funds 

Due from 
other funds 

s 2,589,474 
2,181 

576,928 
4,573,689 

493,4 12 
1,067, I46 

506,42 1 

762 
S 9,810,013 

Due to 
other funds 

$ 4,533,190 

644,930 
2,946,15 5 

2 13,543 
840,650 
547,07 I 
44,484 

$ 9,810,013 

E. General Long-term Debt 

General Long-term Liabilities 

The following is a summary of the changes in amounts payable in the general long-term debt 
account group for the City for the year ended September 30, 1999: 

Balance Balance 

1998 Additions Reductions 1999 
October 1, September 30, 

Capital leases payable $ 10,200 $ 46,548 S 26.539 $ 30,209 

Notes payable 5 18,962 177,153 34 1,809 

Compensated absences 152,355 13,067 139,289 
$ 68 1,517 $-%54 $ 216.759 $s11.3Q$ 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,1999 

E. General Long-term Debt (Continued) 

1. Notes Payable 

Notes payable at September 30, 1999, is comprised of the following: 

8.00% note pavable to individual in quarterly 
installments of $20,095 through November 
2004, collateralized by land 

Maturities of notes payable for the next five years are as follows: 

Amount 

2000 
200 I 
2002 
2003 
2004 

Thereafter 

2. Capital Leases 

Capital leases payable at September 30, 1999, are comprised ofthe following: 

5.30% capital lease payable to Corporation in 
annual installments of $1 6,339 including 
interest through January 200 1,  collateralized by 
ve h ic I es 

$ 341.809 

S 54,623 
59,161 
64,02 1 
69.298 
751007 
19,699 

The future minimum lease obii ations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments 
as of September 30, 1999, is as follows: 

Amount 

2000 
200 1 
2002. 
2003 
200.1 

Totat minimum lease payments 
Less current amount representing interest 
Present value of minimum lease payments 

S 16,339 
16,339 

32.675 
27469 

LllcC2E 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEiMBER 30,1999 

F. Enterprise Funds Long-term Debt 

1. Notes Payable 

Notes payable at September 30, 1999, is comprised of the following: 

2.56% state revolving loan in an amount up to 
$3,465,000, for waste water treatment plant 
upgrade, payable to government agency, semi- 
annual payments of $ 1  11,227 including interest 
beginning March 15, 200 1, collateralized by 
revenues from the operation of the water and 
sewer systems 

6.27% note payable to corporation, annual 
installments of $19,280 including interest 
through July 2003, collateralized by equipment 

Maturities of notes payable are as follows: 

Amount 

2000 
200 1 
2002 
2003 
2004 

Thereafter 

$ 15,115 
63,O 14 

152,889 
157,458 
142.904 

1,452.568 

2. Wuter Revenue Bonds 

Long-term liabilities at September 30, 1999, is comprised of the following: 

$950,000 Water Revenue Bonds payable in 
annual installments ranging from $7,000 to 
$63,000 through September 2028, plus interest 
at 6.25% collateralized by operating income 
before depreciation of the water, sewer. electric 
and gas system 

$ 1,917,531 

66.400 
S I.983,951 

S 876.000 

Interest expense for the enterprise fund for the year ended September 30, 1999 was $56,183 
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CITY OF QUNCY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,1999 

Future debt service requirements, including principal and interest, on bonded debt are as follows: 

Year 

2000 
200 1 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
202 I 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 
Total 

Amount 

$ 65,750 
66,063 
65,3 I2 
65,563 
65,750 
65,875 
6593 8 
65,938 
65,875 
65,750 
65.563 
66,3 I3 
65,938 
66,500 
65,938 
663  I3 
66,563 
66,688 
66,688 
66,563 
66,3 13 
66,93 8 
67,375 
67,625 
67,688 
67,563 
68,250 
67,688 
66.938 

S 1.927.259 
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IV. 

CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATE~MENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,1999 

OTHER INFORMATION 

A. Contingent Liabilities 

Grant  Programs--Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and 
adjustment by grantor agencies. principally the Federal government. Any disallowed claims, 
including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability o f  the applicable funds. The amount, 
if any, o f  expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time 
although the City expects amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

Litigation-The City is involved in pending lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is 
not presently determinable, in the opinion of management, potential claims from litigation apinst 
the City not covered by insurance, would not materially affect the financial position of the City. 

Contamination Assessment--During the fiscal year ended 199 1 ,  contam ination was noted in 
several of the City's closed landfill cells. The City contracted with local engineers to provide 
contamination assessment and assist in  the clean-up. The engineers have indicated that clean-up 
costs could approximate $200,000. 

The sewer system is currently operating under a provisional permit from the State of Florida 
Department o f  Environmental Protection (DEP). The permit establishes a schedule that will allow 
the City to fully comply with Chapter 403, Florida Statutes and rules of DEP relating to waste water 
treatment plant upgrades by December I ,  1999. Management is upgrading the system through 
construction of new waste water treatment facilities for approximate $3 million. Funding is from 
low interest governmental loans. (See Note 111 F. 1 .) 

B. Retirement Savings PIan 

The Retirement Savings Plan (RSP) of the City of Quincy, Florida is a defined contribution pension 
plan estabiished to provide benefits at retirement for the employees. The City is required to 
contribute an amount equal to 12% of the base pay of each eligible participant. Plan provisions and 
contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the City of Quincy, Florida 
Commission. 

C. Police and Firemen's Supplemental Pension Plan (PFSP) 

(a) Pian h/Iembership--AlI of the Cib's full-time police officers and firefighters hired under the 
age of 50 are eligible to participate in the Police and Firemen's Supplementary Pension Plan 
(PFSP), a single-employer, defined benefit pension plan. PFSP provides retirement, disability and 
death benefits to plan members. The following brief description is provided for general information 
purposes only. Participants should refer to Ordinance 72-54  of the City of Quincy, Florida and the 
Summary Plan Description for more complete information. 

- 2 1  - 



CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEiMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,1999 

C. Police and Firemen’s Supplemental Pension Plan (PFSP) (Continued) 

At October I ,  1997 the date of the latest available actuarial valuation, the City of Quincy. Florida 
Police and Firemen’s Supplemental Pension Plan membership consisted OF 

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving 
benefits and terminated employees entitled to 
benefits but not yet receiving them. 

Employees of the City by status were as follows: 

Vested 36 

Nonvested - I7  

Total current employees 

(b) Funding Policy-The City’s funding policy is to provide for periodic empioyee rates that are 
designed to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. The employees contribute a 
percentage of their covered payroll to the plan. The State of Florida also contributes to the Plan. 
The City is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund the PFSP using the 
actuarial basis of the plan. 

(c) 
1999, was zero. 

Annual Pension Cost-The City‘s contribution requirement for the year ended September 30, 

(d) Eligibiiity-A11 full-time Police Officers and Firefighters. 

(e) Basic Compensation--Total cash compensation paid to the participant for services rendered. 

(0 Final Monthly Compensation--The highest average total basic compensation during five 
successive calendar years out of the ten calendar years next preceding the earlier of date of 
termination or normal retirement. 

(9) 
employment to the earlier date of termination or normal retirement. 

Credited Service-Total number of years and completed months of service from date of 

(h) following the 
earlier of ( I )  the date of attainment of age 60 and 10 years credited service or (2) the completion of 
30 years of credited service. 

Normal Retirement Date-The first of the month coincident with or next 

(i) 
years of credited service. 

Normal Retirement Benefit--l.7% of final monthly compensation multiplied by number of 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCML STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,1999 

C. Police and Firemen's Supplemental Pension Plan (PFSP) (Continued) 

(j) Normal Benefit Form--A Single Life Annuity. 

(k) Early Retirement-After the earlier of ( I )  attainment of age 55 and I5 years o f  credited 
service or (2) the completion of 25 ears of credited service. Benefit calculated as for normal 

reduced using Social Security Early Retirement factors. The maximum of early retirement for any 
and each year is 6%. 

retirement but based upon service an J compensation as of date of early retirement and actuarially 

(I)  Postponed Retirement-l.7% of final monthly compensation multiplied by the number of 
,' years for credited service. 

(m) Disability Retirement--Participants having 10 or more continuous years of credited service 
and 10 years of contributions shall receive a disability benefit if they become totally and 
permanentiy disabled. Benefit is life annuity with the ten years certain - 

(i) Line of Duty Disability - Benefit is greater of: 
Accrued Pension 
42% of average monthly salary 

(ii) Non-Line-of-Duty Disability - Benefit is the greater of: 
Accrued Pension 
25% of average monthly salary 

(n) Termination of Service-Vested percentage of accrued deferred monthly retirement income 
at date of termination of employment. Vested percentage is 25% after five ears, increasing 5% per 
year to 50% after ten years and then increasing by 10% per ear to 100% a 8 er 15 years. There is no 
vestin prior to five years of credited service. The month r y retirement income will commence at 
norma 7 retirement date. Employees eligible for early retirement will be 100% vested. If a terminated 

can be provided ! y single-sum value at date of death of the deferred vested retirement Income. 
participant dies rior to retirement, the death benefit is a life income with ten years certain, which 

( 0 )  Pre-Retirement Death Benefit-A monthly income which can be provided by greater of: 

(i) 
(ii) The smaller of: 

Single-sum value of accrued deferred monthly retirement income at date of death, or 

12 times final monthiy compensation at date of death, and 
100 times anticipated monthly retirement income at normal retirement. 

(p) Post Retirement Death Benefit-If participant has been receivins a retirement income, 
payments cease next preceding date of death unless an optional form of retirement was selected. I f  
the participant has postponed retirement, the benefit is a monthiy income which can be provided by 
the accumulation of interest to the date of death o f  the single-sum value of the normal retirement 
benefit using the actuarial assumptions for the postponed retirement benefit. 

(4) Contributions-Those received under Chapters I75 and 185, five and one-half percent 
contribution by employees until April 1, 1994, six and one-half percent until November 1998 and 
seven and one-half percent thereafter. 



CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCLAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,1999 

D. Risk Management 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the City carries commercial insurance. 

E. Prior Period Adjustment 

The beginning fund balance of the general fund has been restated for the correction of an error in 
,accounts payable. Accounts payable was overstated in the prior year in the amount of $248,573. If the 
overstatement had not occurred, expenditures in the general fund for September 30. 1998 would have 
been reported as $5,788,735. 
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TOTAL ASSETS 

CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
COM13INING BALANCE SIIEET 

PRO 1'R I ETA It\' F U N D S 
SEI'TEMHEIt 30, 1999 

Electric Cas Water Sewer Refuse La lid f i l l  Total 

s 334 $ 2,356 S 347 $ 15 $ 56,438 $ 238,383 E 297,873 
350,121) 375,404 55,287 779,81 1 

I ,022,3 I O  73,485 133,990 5 I394  56.258 59,674 1,3')7,3 I I 

4,573,689 1,067, I46 576,928 493,4 I2 506,42 I 
91,512 8,(185 25, IO7 2,  I 2 8  

7,7 17,596 
I 2 6 . w  

140,526 140,526 

3,062,399 533,053 2,707,969 5,954,088 670, I05 I?,V8,5 I J 
25,4110 42, I63  32,892 3,866 104,321 

426,227 183,237 79 1,098 1,400,562 

$ 9,551,891 $ 2,060,529 $ 3,724,028 $ 6,674,655 $ 6l9, l  I 7  $ 1,763,126 $ 23,393,346 
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1,IABILI'I'IES AND EQUITY 

1,IABILITIES 
Accotliits payable ~d accrued liabilities 
Payable l'roiii restricted assets: 

lieveriire bonds, current portion 
Accrued iiilerest payable 
C 11 s I o I iirr d epo s i I s 

Ikferred rcvc'iiucs 
Due to d w r  Iunils 
I<t.veriue buiids, loiig-lcmi portioii 
Ihiiiiattxl I:uidlill clostirc costs 
Cotiliiigeiit lidiilililr: 
Notes payable 

I'otal liabilities 

EQUITY 
C'onlributions: 

b'rum ulher goverriniriits 
Froin developers 

Retained earnings: 
Ikservetl lor capitat iniprovei~isn~s 
Rzservrd fur cariiiiigeiicy mid liliidlill 
Reserved Ibr debt service 
Urireservzd 

l'otal equity 

'ro-rAi, LIABILI-I IES  AND EQUITY 

CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
COM13INING IIALANCE S€IEET 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
SEI"~EMI3ER 30, 1999 

(Coli t i w e d )  

Electric Cas Water Sewer Refuse 1 ,arid fil l  'Total 

26,013 E 1,208,442 $ 796,770 $ 25,954 $ 19,170 $ 283,773 $ 56,762 $ 

11,ono 
4,563 

426,227 

2,936, I55 840,650 644,920 
865,000 

4,169, I52 866,604 1,544,653 

48,000 
2 13,543 

I ,Y 17.55 1 
2,462,867 

1 I ,000 
4,563 

4 2h,2 2 7 
74,927 122,927 

547,07 I 61,1X-I 5,2 56 ,8  2 3 
8 6 5,000 

I,005,500 1,005,500 
200,000 20(1,0UO 

66.400 I ,983,95 I 
603,833 1,437,324 I1,084.433 

44,386 11,456 706,004 1,777,063 594,762 3, I3347 I 
I 7  1,740 15,422 53,655 10,843 25 1,669 

140,526 140,526 
50,000 79 1,098 84 L ,098 
I17,h74 1 17,674 

5,166,604 I, 167,047 I.252.012 2,283,356 (579,178) (-165,296) 8,824,275 - 
5,382,739 1,193,925 2,179,375 4,2 I 1.788 15,284 3 2 5,8 02 I3,308,0 I3 

$ 9,551,891 $ 2,060,529 '6' 3,724,028 $ 6,674,655 $ 619,1 17 $ 1 , 7 6 3 , E  $ 24,393,316 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 

POLICE AND FIREMEN’S SUPPLEMENTAL PENSION PLAN 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMEBTARY INFORMATION 

SEPTEMBER 30,1999 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORlVIATION 
SEPTEMBER 30,1999 

(UNAUDITED) 

POLICE AND FIREMEN’S SUPPLEMENTAL PENSION PLAN 

Schedule 1 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDLNG PROCESS 
(THREE YEARS LNFORlVIATION AVAILABLE) 

Actuarial Unfunded UAAL 

’ Date Assets (AAL) (UAA L) Ratio Pavrol I Payroll 

Actuarial Actuarial Ace ru ed (Ov e I- fu n d ed) as a */o of 
Valuation Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered 

ION97  $ 3,635,460 S 2.601,457 S (1,033,973) 140% $ 1,668.020 (62%) 
1 O/ 1 /96 2975,644 2.39 1,290 (583.354) 124% 1,625,496 (36%) 
1 O/ 1 /95 2,529,835 2,306,163 (223,722) 1 09% 1,533,602 ( I  5%) 

Schedule I1 

Scheduie of Contributions by Employer and Other Contributing Entities 
(Three Years Information Available) 

Year Annual 
Ended Required Employee Ci State Total Percentage 

September 30 Contribution Contribution Contnzution Contribution Contributions Contributed 

$ 139,945 S 103.752 $ $ 85.453 $ 189,205 135% 
I997 178.390 104,998 8 I .305 186,233 104% 
1998 

1996 158,648 100,790 82,s 15 1 83,605 116% 

The information resented in the re uired sup lementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial 
valuations at the B ates indicated. Adjitional in P ormation as of the latest actuarial valuation follows: 

Valuation Date 
Actuarial cost method 
Amortization method 
Remain ing amortization period 
Asset yaluation method 
Actuarial assumptions: 

Investment rate of return* 
Projected salarv increases+ 
*Includes inflation at: 

Cost-of-I iving adjustments 

1 O/  I /97 
Aggregate cost method 
Not  applicable 
Not applicable 
Market value minus surplus contribution 

8.0% 
6.0% 

Not applicable 
4.0% 



CITY OF QUINCY, F1,ORIDA 
SCIIEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FINANCIAL AWARDS 

FOR T11E YEAR ENDEI) SEI’TEMDER 30,1099 

FEI)ERGI. FINAN(’IA1. ASSIS I’ANCK 

1J.S. Dcperlmcnl of Justice 

Passed Ihrougli t‘lorida Depaniiirnt of Juveiiile Jiislicc 

Aliican Auiriicaii Fenirrle ’.Rites of P;lrsags” 

Coriimunity Organizing Program 

\.oca1 L a w  Eiilorceiireiit UlocA Grant 

I oca1 I.aw Enforceriienl lllock Ciranl 

1J.S. Ikpartnieat of  Ilcalih wild Ilriniaii Sertires 

Passed through Dig t k n d  Jobs a i d  Educnlion Council, Inc 

Temporary Assistance for Needy Frririilies 

Total Federal Awards 

Federal 
CFI),A Coritrlrct I’rograni 

Number Number A ni ouii I 
Revenue 

Rrcoetiized ExDendiliJres 

16 54s Q70 I4 L 19.396 38.453 - 38,&3 

I b 592 9BLDVX3105 20,518 29,5 I8 24,5 I 8  

36.972 3 6 . 9 2  
66.494 6fiA49Q 6 6 . 4 9  

16 592 97LL~VS03 105 3 6 . 9 2  

16 710 97UhIWX t 3 9 I ‘ J w m  45,720 45,720 

93 5 5 8  85,000 21,2SO 21,250 

243.69s 5jfi.L)B 244.695 
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Federal Grnimr/Pass Through Grantor/ 
Sla le  C ra n t ar/Pruera iii 'I'i (le 

CITY OF QUlNCY, FLORI1)A 
SCIIEDULE OF EXI'ENDII'URES OF FlNANCIAL AWARDS 

FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED SEI'TEMUER 30,1900 
(Con t iriued) 

S I'A'I'E F I N A NC I A I ASSISr A NC: E 

S l u k  uT Florida, Ilepartiiient ut Envirniiinerital Prulectios 

Cory  Field IZecreat ion Iti iprtrveiiien~s 
Florida ftecrealioir Uevelopiurnl Assistance I'rograni* 

Slate of I h r i d a ,  Deparlnimt o f  Juvenile Justice 

C'o 111 111 un i I y J u v e II I It: 1 u51 i ct: I'arl ne rs t 1 I 11 G ran I * 

-1 olal State Awards 

I olal I'iiiancial Aitards 

Fed era I 
CFDA 

Nuiii Iwr Nurn ber A l l l O U l l 1  Heruriiired Exrrenditurrs 
Contract I'rugrnin It evcnue 

18.034 $ 73.875 $ 18.034 S FY63-l 

I'G.120 3 I ,SOO 19,4118 I9,48X 

1. basis of I'resentstioii 
Ttie accompanying scliedtile o f  expeiiditures o f  finaiicial awards includes the Federal award activity o f  the City of Quincy, Florida, arid is preseiited or1 tlte accrual 
basis of accoutitiiig. The infortiiatiuri iii this schedule is preseiited iri accordaiice with the reqiiireiiients o f  OM13 Circular A- 133, Atitli(.s o! AYlde.y, Locd 
6owrw?wuf& NIL/ Norr-Prcdif (h.b'"tiil.~?r;(iiis. 'I'herefore, solile nrnouiits preserited in this schedule may differ fiorn aillotlilts preseilled ill, o r  w e d  in the 
preparatioii of, the financial staternetits. 

*ltitlicaks a State of Florida Gratits a i d  Aids Appropriation. 
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JAMES MOORE & C O .  
CERTIFIED P U B L I C  ACCOUNTANTS 

LWEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTEWAL CONTROL 
OVER FLNANCWL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTA UDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable City Commission, 
City of Quincy, Florida: 

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of Quincy, Florida, as o f  and for the 
, year ended September 30, 1999, and have issued our  report thereon dated August 3,2000. We conducted 

our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States. 

Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Quincy, Florida's general purpose 
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination o f  financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance wirh those provisions was not an objective of our audit and. accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards which are described below: 

A. Grant Reporting 

As noted in the prior year audit, the City of Quincy, Florida's quarterly financial status reports, that 
are required to be filed with the various grantors, continue to not agree with the City's financial 
records. We recommend that these reports be reconciled to the City's financial data. Once this has 
been completed and all corrections to the financial status reports are completed, we recommend that 
the City Manager be provided the grant reports, supporting documentation and City financial 
reports to verify that the financial status reports agree to the City's financial records. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In  planning and performing our audit. we considered the City of Quincy, Florida's internal control over 
financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our 
opinion on the general purpose financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control 
over financial reporting. However, we noted certain matters involving the internal control over financial 
reporting and its operation that we consider to be reponable conditions. Reportable conditions involve 
matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the 
internal control over financial reporting that. in our judgment. could adversely affect the City of Quincy, 
Florida's ability to record. process, summarize and report financial data consistent with the assertions of 
management in the general purpose financial statements. Reportable conditions are described below: 

, 

- 3 4 -  



A. Prompt Bank Reconciiiations 

As noted in the prior year, genera1 ledger and bank balances should be reconciled promptly to 
furnish current proof that all transactions in the bank accounts have bee2 recorded. Bank statements 
are not being reconciled timely, nor are they currently being reconciled to the general ledger 
balance. We recommend the accounting department promptly reconcile all months since October I ,  
1999, to the current year general ledger. Once this is completed we recommend the accounting 
department provide a reconciliation report to the City Manager as part of the monthly reporting 
process. This report should be reviewed by the City Finance Director and signed as verification that 
the bank reconciliation and general ledger are in agreement. 

B. General Fixed Assets 

As noted in the prior year, the City periodically takes a physical inventory of property and 
equipment used in both its enterprise operations and in general government. This physical inventory 
serves to account for the physical existence of assets and allows for updating of the related fixed 
assets records. 

We noted during our audit for the current year, the fixed asset inventory was not reconciled to the 
properp records. We recommend the City implement the foliowing suggestions related to fixed 
assets: 

1. Take a physical inventory of all property and equipment including listing the ID #, serial #, 
condition and location of the item. This inventory then should be compared to the City 
property records and differences should be communicated to the City Manager or City 
Finance Director for proper disposition. 

2.  After the property records are updated and reconciled, a report should be made annually to the 
City Commissioners noting any discrepancies between the physical inventory and the detail 
property records. 

We believe implementation of the foregoing recommendations will increase the control over 
safeguarding of property and equipment maintained by the City. 

C. Record keeping 

As noted in the prior year, the City of Quincy, Florida is required to maintain proper accounting 
systems and procedures as stated in Florida Statutes 1 1.46(3). This system should provide any user, 
upon request, up-to-date balances in all accounts under the City’s charge, such as cash balances, 
receivables, and due from/to accounts. During the course of the audit, we noted significant errors in 
the various City financial records. These errors required numerous corrections to the City’s general 
purpose financial statements. 

We recommend the City Manager be provided with detail trial balances, bank reconciliations and 
financial statements for review by the 1 51h date following the end of the month. 
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D. 

E. 

F. 

Grant Managemeat 

The City has numerous grants from various Federal and State agencies. Presently all administration 
of these grants take place in the City department that the grant applies. Under this system, there is 
no central knowledge base of grant requirements, programmatic responsibilities, program outcomes 
and financial reporting. 

We recommend the City establish a grants management department with full responsibilities and 
authority for all grant administration. This department could insure that all grant provisions are met, 
that required program outcomes are accompiished, that all aspects of grant financial management 
are adhered to, and that reporting and close out is timely completed. 

Cash Receipts 

The City presently receives cash receipts in the utility billing department. The employees in this 
department code the cash receipts and then enter them into the cash receipts system, which 
interfaces with the general ledger. We recommend that the internal control over posting of cash 
receipts be improved by delivering cash receipt batches to the finance department for verification of 
account coding and final posting to the general ledger, 

Accounts Payable 

As reported in our prior year audit, the City is not following careful practice in recording all 
purchases and other liabilities in the proper accounting period. Liabilities should be recorded in the 
accounting period in which the goods or services are received rather than the following period when 
the invoice or statement is received. The current practice results in some distortion of monthly 
financial statements and necessitates an undue amount of work in the course of the year-end audit to 
locate and enter adjustments for important unrecorded liabilities. We suggest that the City revise its 
approach in vouchering purchases by recording them in the period in which the liability is incurred 
and reconciling the detail Iisting of accounts payable to the general ledger. 

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control 
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be 
material in relation to the general purpose financial statements being audited may occur and not be 
detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily 
disclose all marters in the internal control that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not 
necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses. 
However, we believe reportable conditions A., B., C., D.. E. and F. described above are material 
weaknesses. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Commission, the Auditor General of 
the State of Florida and other regulatory agencies, and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified users. 

Tat lahassee, Florida 
August 3,2000 
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JAMES MOORE & C O .  
C E R T I F I E D  r u m c  ACCOUNTANTS 

LYDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON EXMMINATION OF MANAGEMENT'S 
ASSERTION ABOUT COMPLIANCE WITH SPECIFIED REQUIREMENTS 

To the Honorable City Commission. 
City of Quincy, Florida: 

: We have examined management's assertion about City o f  Quincy, Florida's compiiance with the 
' allowable cost requirements established in the grant agreements applicable to the state grants and aids 

appropriations identified on schedule of expenditures of financial awards for the year ended September 
30, 1999, included in the accompanying Management Assertion Report. Management is responsibie for 
City of Quincy, Florida's compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on management's assertion about the City of Quincy. Florida's compliance based on our examination. 

Our examination was made in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute 
of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis, evidence about 
City of Quincy, Florida's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as 
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our examination provides a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal determination on City of Quincy, 
Florida's com p i iance with specified requirements. 

In  our opinion, management's assertion that City of Quincy, Florida complied with the aforementioned 
requirements during the fiscal year ended September 30, 1999, is fairly stated. in all material respects. 

Tallahassee, Florida 
August 3, 2000 
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THE CITY OF QUINCY 
QUINCY' FLORIDA 

vrnca 1835 

. .  

404 W. Jefferson Street Quincy, Florida 3235 1-2328 Phone: (850) 627-7681 Fax: (850) 875-3733 

MASAGE-WENT'S ASSERTION REPORT 

I, Earl Banks, hereby assefi that the Ciry of Quincy, Florida complied with allowable cost requirements of 
the grants and aids appropriations identified OR the attached Schedule of Expenditures of Financial 
Awards during the fiscal year ended September 30, 1999. 

Signature 

Citv Manaeer 
Title 

August 3. 2000 
Date 
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JAMES MOORE & C O .  
CERTIFIED P U B L I C  A C C O U N T A N T S  

LVDEPEiYDENT AUDITORS’ iMANAGEiMENT LETTER REQUTRED BY CHAPTER 10.550, 
RULES OF TEE AUDITOR GENEFUL 

To The Honorable City Commission, 
City of Quincy, Florida: 

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of City of Quincy, Florida. as of and for the 
, ’ year ended September 30, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated August 2,2000. 

We have issued our Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance and on Internal Control over Financial 
Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government 
Auditing Siandards dated August 3, 2000. Disclosures in that report, if any, should be considered in 
conjunction with this management letter. 

We conducted our  audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Additionally. our audit was conducted in accordance with the provisions of 
Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. which govern the conduct of local governmental entity 
audits performed in the State of Florida and require that certain items be addressed in this letter. 

The Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.554f 1 >(e)l .) require that we comment as to whether or not 
irregularities reported in the preceding annual financial audit report have been corrected. There were no 
irreguiarities disclosed in the preceding annual financial audit report. 

The Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.554( 1)(3)2.) require that we comment as to whether or not 
the recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit report have been followed. None of 
the recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit report have been corrected as reported 
in the Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards. 

As required by the Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.554( l)(e)3-) the scope of our audit included 
a review of the provisions of Section 2 18.503( I ), Florida Statutes, “Defermination of Financial 
Emergency.” In connection with our audit. we determined that the City of Quincy. Florida, is not in a 
state of financial emergency as described by Section 2 I8.503( I ), Florida Statutes. 

As required by the Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.554( 1 )(f)4.) we determined that the annual 
financial report for the City of Quincy, Florida. for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1999, was filed 
with the Department of Banking Finance pursuant to Section 218.32. Florida Statutes. and is in 
agreement with the annual financial audit report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1999. 

- 3 9 -  
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The Ruies of the Auditor General (Sections 10.554( l)(f)6.,7.,S.,9.) require disclosure in the management 
letter of the following matters if not already addressed in the auditors’ report on the internal control and 
compliance: recommendations to improve financial management, accounting procedures, and internal 
controls; violations of laws, rules, and regulations which may or may not materially affect the financial 
statements; illegal or improper expenditures which may or may not materially affect the financial 
statements; impreper or inadequate accounting procedures (e.g. the omission of required disclosures for 
the financial statements); failures to properly record financial transactions; and other inaccuracies, 
irregularities, shortages, and defalcations discovered by the auditor. Our audit disclosed matters required 
to be disclosed by Rules of Auditor Generai (Sections 10.554( l)(f)6.,7.,8.,9.) as follows: 

A. Record Storage and Retrieval 

As reported in our prior year audit, during our audit we noticed that accounting records frequently could 
not be located when needed. The causes of the problem appeared to be a) lack of a clearly specified 

,’system for f i h g  records. 6) failure of those who removed records from the files to indicate who took the 
record, c) failure to return the record to the files or misfiling it when it was returned, and d) lack of 
specified policies for removing prior year records from the files to a designated storage space. The result 
was that employees spent nonproductive time searching for needed documents. This condition could also 
present problems when documents are needed in support of other reports subject to audit by us or other 
governmental agencies. We recommend that the following steps be taken: 

Decide OR a systematic manner of filing documents, e.g., numbered invoices, receiving reports, 
etc., consecutively by number, vendor bills alphabetically by vendor name, journal entries by 
month. and so on. Describe the system in the accounting manual or post a description on the 
filing cabinets or storage room so that employees will know how to find and refile documents. 

Institute use of “sign-out” cards to be filled out when a document is removed, showing who 
took the record. The card should be placed in the file in place of the removed document. 

Establish a policy specifying which records should be retained permanently and which records 
should be kept only for a given period before being destroyed and how long that period should 
be. Also, decide on when records should be removed from more accessible files to other storage 
areas. For example, some cities keep the current and prior year records in the accounting 
department or in storage rooms on the city’s premises and store older records in off-premises 
warehouses. Assign personnel the responsibility to periodically clean out the files in accordance 
with the established policy. 
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B. Accounting Manual 

As reported in our prior year audit, we noted that the City does not have an up to date accounting 
procedures manual. There may be an assumption that because the City’s accounting system is relatively 
simple and accounting personnel have direct and easy access to the finance director when questions arise, 
there is no need for a manual. However, written procedures, instructions, and assignments of duties will 
prevent or reduce misunderstandings, errors, inefficient or wasted effort, duplicated or omitted 
procedures, and other situations that can result in inaccurate or untimely accounting records. A well- 
devised accounting manual can also help to assure that all similar transactions are treated consistently, 
that accounting principles used are proper, and that records are produced in the form desired by 
management. A good accounting manual should aid in the training of new employees and possibly allow 
for delegation to other employees of some accounting functions that management performs. It will take 
some time and effort for management to develop a manual; however, we believe this time will be offset 
by time saved later in training and supervising accounting personnel. Also, in the process of the 

,,* comprehensive review of existing accounting procedures for the purpose of developing the manual, 
management might discover procedures that can be eliminated or improved to make the system more 
efficient and effective. Should management desire, we would be pleased to develop an accounting 
manual as a separate engagement. 

C. City Employee Pension Plan 

As reported in our prior year audit, monthly or quarterly statements obtained from the investment trustee 
should be reconciled to employer contributions per the general ledger. This will furnish proof that the 
investment trustee has appropriately recorded contributions made by the City. No attempt at reconciling 
the City‘s contributions to that recorded by the trustee is currently being made. We suggest the employer 
contributions per the general ledger be reconciled to the trustee statements either on a monthly or 
quarterly basis. This procedure will quickly identify any mistakes OR the City’s and investment trustee’s 
accounting records. 

D. Management Reports 

As reported in our prior year audit, one of the accounting department’s prime responsibilities is the 
preparation of accurate, timely financial statements and accounting reports. The need for such reports 
was not so apparent when the City was smaller. However, with rapid growth and public awareness of the 
City, accurate reports which evaluate the City’s financial position and results of operations on it current 
basis are imperative so that management decisions can be timely and more effective. 
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Other cities have found that reporting systems have proved to be effective as management tools when the 
following requirements are met: 

r. - 

1. Reports are prepared quickly after the end of the accounting period. 

2. Actual results are compared with predetermined budgets and prior year results. 

3. Reports present departmental revenues and expenditures and/or expenses. 

4. Reports present cash flow information to show by fund, the amount of cash at the beginning of 
the period, additions to cash for the period, reductions in cash for the period and ending cash 
balance. 

The Rules of the Auditor General (Sections 10.554 ( I )  (e) IO.) also require that the name or official title 
; and legal authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be 

disclosed in the management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The City of 
Quincy, Florida included no component units that are required under generally accepted accounting 
princi p Ies. 

This management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the City Commission and the 
Auditor General of the State of Florida and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other 
than these specified users. 

Ta I lahass ee, F io r i da 
August 3,2000 
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Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 

TNDEPENDE3T AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Konorable Mayor and City Commission 
City of Quincy, Florida 

We have audited the accompanyins general purpose financial statements of the  City of Quincy, Florida. (the 
"City") as of and for the year ended September 30, 2000, as listed in the table of contents. These general 
purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express 

, an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Govemnient Arditing Smirhrds,  issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Those Standards require that we pian and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures 
in the general purpose tinancia1 statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by manazement, as we11 as evaluating the overall general purpose financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable bask for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in ail material 
respects, the financia1 position of the City of Quincy, Florida, as of September 30, 7,000, and the results of its 
operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the year then ended in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles of the United States. 

In accordance with Government Aridiring Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 29, 2001, on 
our consideration of the City's intern4 control over financial reporting and our test of its compliance wirh 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and pants. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Covemmeni Auditing Siczndards and should be read in conjunction with this 
report in considering the results of our audit. 

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements taken 
as a whole. The data contained in the combining financial statements are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of the City of 
Quincy. Florida. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the 
general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in a11 materid respects in rehion to 
the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole. 

The supplementary information on pages 31-32 is not a required part of the general purpose financial 
statements but is supplementary information required by the General Accounting S tandurds Board. 
However, we did not audit the supplementary information, and accordingly, express no opinion thereon. 

Tallahassze, Florida 
June 29,2001 
(except for Note 15, as to which 
the date is August 6. 2001) 



CITY 01; QUINCY, F1,Oltlnh 
COMIlINED ItALANCE SllEET - A L L  1;IJND ‘TYPES ANT) ACCOUN‘I’ ROUPS 

Tola1 A s s c t s  arid Oiticr Lkbils 

$ 238,111 $ 

1,068,620 

28,075 

9,724,090 
121,213 

145,523 

138,327 

69.6 I6  

74,809 

50,654 $ 1,251,136 $ 183,932 $ 

830,880 in,70-1,-19-1 

701.53 1 

30,340 

17 1,05 I 8,735,391 174,383 
93,G33 ‘ 95,030 

37- I ,642. 

172,304 

1,467,386 

13,179,753 

129,670 

7 29 606 

S0,9UJ 

I8,fWli  15 

309.876 

165,523 
138,317 
391,258 

The accompanying notes 10 financial m i t m c r i t i  are an iiiregilrl pan of thri hiairii irti i  
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City of Quincy, Florida 
COiLIBlNED STATEhIENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BtILriNCES (DEFICIT) -- ALL GOVERNhIENTAL FUND TYPES 
For thc Year Ended September 30, 2000 

Totals 
Specla1 (Memorandum 

Genera I Revenue Onlv)  

Revenues 
Taxes 
Licenses 2nd permits 
[ntergovernmen tal 
Other 

Expenditures 
C urren t : 

General government 
Public safety 
Transportation 
Culture and recreation 
Physical environment 
Human services 
Economic environment 

Debt Service: 
Principal 
Interest and other charges 

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures 

Other financing sources 
Sale of general fixed assets 
Operating transfers in 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
financing sources over expenditures 

Fund baIance (deficit) 
At  beginning of year 
A t  end of year 

9 933,678 S - s  993.675 
31.619 8 1,619 

84 1,655 35 1,776 1.222,93 1 
537.974 8 37.979 

3s 1.376 3.136207 2.73'493 L 

1 ,%0,7 15 52.453 1393,168 
3,009,776 272,282 3,252,055 
1,265,154 1,265,184 

6 54.2 69 654,269 
43,967 43,967 

152,475 152.475 
27,78 1 27,7s 1 

54,623 54,623 
25.757 25.757 

6.653 -073 47-72 IO 7.129.282 

(3,597.14 1) (95.934) (3,993,075) 

45,255 45,255 
4.182.116 4.153,,116 

4,227,404 4,227,404 

330,263 (9 5.9 34) 234,329 

(177.305) (6.003,) 1153.307) 
s 152.958 S 1101.936) S 5 1.022 

The a c c c m p " i n g  notes to financial statements are an inicgiiil pari of this statenen:. 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 

Revenues 
Taxes 
Licenses and permits 
Intergovernmen tal 
0 ther 

Expenditures 
Current: 

General sovernment 
Public safety 
Transportation 
Culture and recreation 
Physicaf environment 
Human services 
Economic environment 

Debt Service 
Pri nc i pal 
Interest and other charges 

ALL GOVERNMENT.4L FUND TYPES 
COFvIBINED STrITEhIENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended September 30,2000 

Variance 
Favorable 

Budeet Actual w n  favor ab I el 

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures 

Other financing sources 
Sales of general fixed assets 
Operacing transfers in  

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
financing sources over expenditures 

Fund balance (deficit) 

At beginning of year 

At end of year 

rs 993,678 S 993,675 $ 
S 1.6 19 81,619 

1,310,145 1,222.93 1 12,753 
s 17.423 537.979 20.556 

3,102.868 3.136207 33.339 

1,793,9 10 1,593,163 2 00,7 42 
3.3 1 1,098 3,252,058 29,040 
1,425,995 1,365,184 1633 14 

706,354 684,269 22,055 
44,026 43,967 59 
27,930 27,?5 1 149 

152,475 152.475 

54,623 54,623 
25,757 25.757 

7,545,17 I 7.129.252 4 15.839 

(4,442,303) (3,993,075) 449,328 

178.738 45.385 ( 123,450) 
(37.8 841 4.220.000 4.182.1 16 

4,390.7 3 8 4,227,404 ( 17 1,334) 

(43,565) 234,329 377.594 

I I53 307) 183.3071 

s (226.8721 5 51.022 5 277.394 

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of thIs statement. 



CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 

ENTERPRISE FUND 
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND 

CffANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2000 

Operating revenues 
Charges for services 

Operating expenses 
Cost of sales and services 
General and administrative 
Depreciation and amortization 
Taxes 
Treatment 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income 

No no pera tin g revenues (expenses) 
Interest income 

Income before operating transfers 

Operating transfers out 

Net loss 

Retained earnings, beginning of year 

Retained earnings, end of year 

.’$ 16.047.339 

9,798,056 
597,055 
577,44 1 
256,343 
520.750 

12,379,644 

3,667,695 

75.376 

3,743,07 1 

(4.132.1 16) 

(439,045) 

9.923.575 

$ 9.454.530 

The accompanying notes to tjnancial statements 
are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 

,,' ADDITIONS 

Contributions: 
State of Florida 
Plan members 
Employer 

Total contributions 

Investment income 
Earnings 

To tal Additions 

DEDUCTIONS 

Benefits payments 
Administrative expenses 

Total Deductions 

TRUST FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,1000 
STATEhIENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS - 

Police and 
Firemen's 

Retirement Supplemental 
Savings Pension 

Plan Plan Total 

$ - $  95,030 $ 95,030 
i22,Oll 122.01 1 

456.056 456.056 
456.086 217,041 673,127 

954,937 536,535 1,521,523, 
~~~~ 

1 .# 1.023 753.626 2.194,649 

1,125,677 116,412 1,242,089 
7.055 7.05 8 

1.125.677 133.470 1249.147 

Net increase 3 15,346 630,156 945,502 

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits 

Beginning of year 5,739.58 1 4,257,766 10,037.647 

End of year s 6.065.227 $ 4.9 17.922 5 10.953.139 

The accompanying notes to financial statements 
are an integra1 part of this statement. 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDti 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
COhIBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED S E P T E ~ I B E R 3 0 . 2 0 0 0  

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Operatins loss 
Adjustmrnts to reconale operating loss to 

Depreciation and amornzation 
Unreaiized loss on market adjustments 
(Increase) decrease in: 

Net cash provided by (used in)  operating activiries: 

Accounts receivable 
Due from other funds 
Inventories 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable 
Compensated absences payable 
Accrued expenses 
Customer deposits 
Deferred revenue 
Due to other funds 

Total adjustments 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

Cash Flows From Non-capital Financing Activity: 
Transfer out 

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities: 
Acquisition of fixed assets 
Repayment of long term debt 
Proceeds from loan 

Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities: 
(Increase) in investments 
(Increase) in ocher assets 

Net cash flows used in investing activities 

N e t  Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year 

577,44 1 
36,576 

695,780 
2,665.32 t 
(1948 LO) 

(282.35 1) 
73.059 

696 
42,057 

(122,927) 
1.749.25 1 
5.245.063 

4.806.0 18 

(4.182.1 16) 

(8 2 3,4 8 0)  
( I 1,000) 

1.350.646 
540.966 

(154.469) 
(25.353) 

(179.527) 

955,04 I 

433.399 

5 I .123.440 

The accompanying notes to financial statements 
are an integral p u t  of this statement. 
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CITY OF QUINCY 

SEPTEMBER 30,2000 
NOTES TO F r N m c I A L  STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1 - REPORTING ENTITY 

The City of Quincy. Florida. (the “City”) is a municipality, which operates under ;I Commission-City 
bIanqer form of government established in 1823 pursuant LO a Special Act  of the State of Florida 
Legislature. The City provides municipal services to its residents, includins general government. 
economic environment, public safety, public works, and housing and recreation. The City also provides 
electric. water, sewer,  gas, refuse collection and landfill services. 

The financial reporting entity, under which the financial statements are prepared include all the 
organizations, activities, functions, and component units for which the City (Primary Government) is 

’ financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as the appointment of a voting majority of the 
component unit’s Board. and either ( I )  the City’s ability to impose its will over the component unit, or (2) 
the possibility thar the component unit will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financia1 burden on 
the City. 

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the primary government is financially 
accountable or organizations which should be included in the City’s financial statements because of the 
nature and significance of their reIationship with the primary government. Component units are included 
in the reporting entity either as blended or as discreteIy presented components units. All 
fundddepartments are regarded as one legal entity, therefore, the financial position and results of 
operations of the funds/departments are reported as part of the primary government. 

In 1999, the City passed an ordinance establishing the Community Redevelopment Agency (CFU). The 
CRA, which is considered to be a component unit of the City, has not been included in the financial 
statements in as much as there has been no financiat activity and the component unit has no assets, 
liabilities, or fund balance. 

NOTE 2 - SmmMRY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The following is a summary of the City’s significant accounting policies presented to assist the reader in 
interpreting the financial statements and other data in this report. These policies are considered essential 
and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financia1 statements. 

Basis of Presentation 

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each of which is 
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set 
of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures or 
expenses, as appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds 
based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are 
controlled. The various funds are grouped into three fund types and two account groups as follows. 

Go vernm en tal F IL rid Types 

Governmental funds are those, which are used to account for most general governmental functions of the 
City. The measurement focus of these funds is based upon determination of changes in financial position 
or the financia1 flow measurement focus, rather than upon net income. 

10 



CITY OF QUINCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2000 

The following are the City's sovernmcntd fund types: 

G L / ~ J I - C I ~  Fiind - used to accounc for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in 
another fund. 

Special Revenue F m d s  - used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than 
expendable trusts) that are IegaiIy restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. 

Proprietary Fund 

' The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon determination of net income, financial position, and 
cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles utilized for these funds are those similar to 
businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of the Proprietary Fund of the City. 

Enterprise Funds 

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner simiIar 
to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, 
including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be 
financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that 
periodic determination of revenues eamed, expenses incurred. andor net income is appropriate for capital 
maintenance, public p o k y ,  management controi, accountability, or other purposes. 

Fiduciary Fund Type 

Trust and Agency Funds - used to account for assets heId in a trustee capacity or as an agent for other 
funds, governmental units and others. The pension trustfiilnd is accounted for in essentidly the same 
manner as proprietary funds, using the same measurement focus and basis of accounting. The pension 
trzrstfiind accounts for the assets of the City's Retirement Savings Plan and for the Potice and Firemen's 
SuppIemencal Pension Plan. 

Account Gruups 

Account Groups are used to establish control and accountability over the City's general fixed assets and 
general long-term debt. General Fireditssers is used to account for the general fixed assets of the City 
other than those of the Enterprise Funds. General Long-Term Debr is used to account for the Ion,- = term 
debt obligations of the City, with the excepcion of the revenue bonds payable from specified revenues of 
various Enterprise Funds. 

Basis of Accounting 

Baris of accounting refers to the point at which revenues and expenditures or expenses are recosnized in 
the accounts and reported in the financiai statements. Basis of accounting relates to the thins of the 
measurements made. regardless of the measurement focus applied. 



CITY OF QCINCY 

SEPTEiblBER 30,2000 
NOTES TO F1N:INClAL STXTEhlENTS 

All governmental funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues 
are recognized when they become measurable 2nd available to pay liabilities o f  the current period. Ad 
valorem t u e s  are considered measurable and available when due beFore. and collected within 60 days 
subsequent to, September 30. Utility service ta.~es and franchise fees. licenses and permits, fines and 
forfeitures. charges for services and miscellaneous revenues are generally recorded as revenue when due. 
Sales taxes collected and held by the State at year-end on behalf of the City are also recognized as 
revenue. Interest income is recorded as earned since i t  is measurable and available. Other receipts and 
taxes become measurable and available when cash is received by the government and are recognized as 
revenue at that time. 

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related 
fund liability is incurred. However, unmatured interest on general long-term debt, are recognized when 
due, and certain compensated absences and claims and judgments are recognized when the obligations are 
expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources. 

Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier date if the susceptible to 
accrual criteria are met. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying 
expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been met- 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

The City, in accordance with its charter and state iaw, adheres to the foIlowing procedures in establishing 
the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5.  

6. 

Prior to August 15, the City Manager submits to the City Commission a proposed operating budget 
for the fiscal year commencing the following October 1. The operating budget includes proposed 
expenditures and the means of financing them. 

Public hearings are held to obtain taxpayer comments. 

Prior to October 1, the budget is Iegally enacted through passage of an ordinance. 

Budgetary control is maintained at the departmentd and fund level, with finance department 
providing support to departments in the administration of their budgets. In accordance with the City's 
budget transfer poIicy, the City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within any fund 
or function; however. the City Commission must approve any supplemental appropriations or 
revisions that amend the total expendicures of any fund. During the year, supplementary 
appropriations were necessary to ensure that expenditures did not exceed budgeted appropriations. 
All budgets are on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. 

Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended in accordance with City ordinances. The 
accompanying financial statements incorporate the original budget ordinances and a11 amendments 
the re to. 

All annual appropriations lapse 3t fiscal year end. 
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CITY OF QUINCY 

SEPTEMBER 30,2000 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial stacements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires munagemenr to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
amounts of revenues and expendituredexpenses during che reporting period. Actual resuits could differ 
from those estimates. 

Encumbrances 

’ Encumbrances accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the 
expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is 
employed in the general and special revenue funds. Encumbrances outstanding at the balance sheet date 
are cancelled. 

Compensated Absences 

The City‘s policy is to permit employees to accumulate earned and unused vacation and sick pay benefits. 
AccumuIared unpaid vacation and sick pay benefits are accrued in the Enterprise Fund when incurred 
using the accrual basis of accounting. All such amounts for the Governmental Fund Types are recorded 
in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group, because both the long-term and the short-term portions 
wilt be liquidated with future resources. 

Bond Issuance Costs 

Bond issuance costs for Proprietary Fund Types are deferred and amortized over the term of the bonds 
using the bonds-outstanding-method, which approximates the effective interest method. Bond issuance 
costs are recorded as deferred charges. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term investments with 
maturity dates, within three months from the dates acquired by the City. 

Investments 

Investments, consisting of U.S. Govemmental securities and repurchase a g n x “  are stated at fair 
value. 

In terfund Receivables and Paya bies 

Transactions between funds that are representative of tending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the 
end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “interfund receivabies/payables” (Le., the current portion of 
interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (Le., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All 
other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds”. 

13 
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CITY OF QUINCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEhlENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2000 

I R vc n torics 

Inventories consist of materials and supplies held for use or consumption, are recorded at cost using the 
tirst-in. first-ouc method (FIFO). Inventories reported for the Governmental Fund Types are recorded 
under the purchase method of inventory accounting, and are [herefore equaily offset by a fund balance 
reserve which indicates that they do no constitute available spendable resources for appropriation. 

Allowance for UncoIIectibles 

The City calculates its allowance for uncollrctibles using historical collection data. specific accounc 
’ analysis, and management’s judgment. As of September 30, 2000, the allowance for uncollectibles was 

$449,053 for the enterprise fund. 

Fixed Assets 

Fixed assets used in governmental fund types of the City are recorded in the general fixed assets account 
group at cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated fixed assets are recorded at 
their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Assets in the general fixed assets account group are not 
depreciated and interest incurred during construction is not capitalized. 

Public domain (infrastructure) general fixed assets consisting of certain improvements other than 
buildings, including roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets, and sidewalks, drainage system, and 
Iighting system. are not capitalized since they are immovable and of value only to the City. 

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of [fie assets or materially extend 
the useful lives of the assets are not included in the genera1 fixed assets account group or capitalized in 
the proprietary funds. 

Property, plant and equipment in the proprietary funds of the City are recorded at cost. Property plant and 
equipment donated to these proprietary fund type operations are recorded at their estimated fair value at 
the date of donation. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized in proprietary funds as projects are 
constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of proprietary fund fixed assets is reflected in 
the capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over the 
same period. During 2000, no interest was capitalized. 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated in the proprietary funds of the City using the straight line 
method over the following estimated useful lives ranging from 3 to 40 years. 

14 
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CITY OF QUINCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST.4TE)IENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2000 

Long-Term 0 bIign tions 

The City reports long-term debt of governmental funds at face value in the general long-term debt account 
group. Certain other governmental fund obligations not expected to be financed w i h  current available 
financial resources are also reported in [he general long-term debt account group. 

Long-term debt and other obligations financed by proprietary funds are reported as liabilities in the 
appropriate funds. Bond premiums and discounts. as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized 
over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the 
applicable bond premium or discount. Issuance costs are reported as deferred charges. 

Fund Equity 

Reservations of fund balance represent amounts that are not appropriable or are legally segregated for a 
specific purpose. Reservations of retained earnings are limited to outside third-party restrictions. 
Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change. The 
proprietary fund’s contributed capital represents equity acquired through capital p m t s  and capital 
contributions from developers, customers or other funds. 

0 ther Assets 

Other assets include $9,519 of unamortized loan costs which relate to the issuance of Revenue Bonds. 
The original bond issue costs of $14,567 are amortized using the straight-line method over the 41-year 
term of the bond. 

Property Taxes 

Property values are assessed as of January 1 of each year, at which time taxes become an enforceable lien 
on property. Tax bills are mailed in October and are payable upon receipt. Taxes become delinquents on 
ApRl 1 of the year following the year of assessment and State law provides for enforcement of collection 
of property taxes by the sale of interest-bearing tax certificates and the seizure of personal property to 
satisfy unpaid property taxes. The procedures result in the coIlection of essentially all taxes prior to June 
30 of the year following the year of assessment. 

No accruals for the propercy tax levy becoming due in November 2000 is included in the accompanying 
financia1 statements since the legal right to receive these taxes occurs on November I, 2000, and such 
taxes are collected to finance expenditures of the fiscal year ending September 30, 2001. 

Memorandum Only-Total Columns 

Total columns on the general purpose financial statements are captioned as “Memorandum only” because 
they do not represent consolidzted financial information and are presented only to facilitate financial 
analysis. The columns do not present information that reflects financial position, results of operations or 
cash flows in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. lnterfund eliminations have not 
been made in the aggregation of this data 
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CITY OF QUIXCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2000 

NOTE 3 - RESTRICTED ASSETS, PAYABLES FR0iP.I RESTRICTED ASSETS A N D  
RESERVED RETAINED EARNINGS 

Restricted assets of the Enterprise Funds consist of cash and cash equivalents and investments related to 
t h e  proceeds of the City’s water revenue bonds and certain resources set aside for their repayments which 
are required to be restricted under the terms of the bond covenants. 

For certain assets restricted under bond agreement, a reserve is established by charging rerained earnings 
in an amount equal to the restricted assets. When the restricted asseis are expended, the reserve is 
restored to retained earninzs. 

NOTE 4 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESThIIENTS 

At September 30. 2000, the City’s cash and cash equivalents and investments included the following: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments (including cash equivalen cs) 
Total cash and cash equivalents and investments 

$ 1,896,130 
14,071,380 

S 15,967,520 

All deposits with financial institutions are fully insured or collateralized as required by. the City 
Commission. The deposits are covered by federal depository insurance and, for the amount in excess of 
such federal depository insurance, by the State of Florida’s Public Deposit Act (the “Act”). Provisions of 
h e  Act require that public deposits may only be made at qualified public depositories. The Act requires 
each qualified public depository to deposit with the State Treasurer eligible colIatera1 equaI to or in excess 
of the required collateral as determined by the provisions of the Act. In the event of a failure by a 
qualified public depository, losses, in excess of federal depository insurance and proceeds from the sale of 
the securities pledged by the defaulting depository, are assessed against the other qualified public 
depositories of the same type as the depository in default. 

In vestments 

Investments are made in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 125.3 I (1) Florida Statutes. 

The City is authorized to make direct investments in U.S. government, federal agency, and 
instrumentdity obiigations at a price not to exceed the market price at the time of purchase. In addition, 
the City may invest in certificates of financial institutions insured by the United States government or 
agencies thereof and repurchase agreements. 

The City’s investments are categorized to provide an indication of the level of risk assumed by the City at 
year end. Category I includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are 
held by the City or its agent in the City’s name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered 
investments for which the securities are heId by the counterparty’s trust department or agent in the city’s 
name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by 
the counterpafly or by its trust department or agent but not in the City’ na-“ 



CITY OF QUINCY 

SEPTEMBER 30,3000 
NOTES TO FINANCI.4L STATEhlENTS 

The tabular presentation which follows presents the City's investments (including cash equivalents) in 
terms of risk assumed at September 30, 3000: 

Cate cow 
Fair 

2 3 Value 
U.S. Government and Agency 

Seouri ties S 1,783.574 $ s -  s 1,782.574 

Commercial Paper 2453 14 245,s 14 

Mortgage backed securities 3,12 1,072 3,121,072 

Equity securities 

Mutual Funds 

Total 

2.705,23 I 2.70823 1 
S 4,490.805 5 3.366.856 $ -  7,857,69 1 

6.2 13.689 

5 14.07 1.380 

NOTE 5 - RECEIVABLES 

Receivables as of yearend, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows: 

General ~ Enterprise Total 
Accounts S 28,075 $ 811,319 $ 339,404 
Less: Allowance for uncollec tibles 109,798 109,798 
Net total receivables $ 25.075 5 701,531 $ 729,606 
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CITY OF QUINCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEhlENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2000 

NOTE 6 - FIXED ASSETS 

Changes in fixed assets of the City for the year ended September 30, 2000 are as follows: 

%dance Balance 

Description 1999 Additions Re ti reme n ts 2000 
October I? September 30, 

General Fixed Assets: 

Land S 1,457.029 s -  $ -  $ 1,487,029 
Buildings 1,057.537 1,087,537 
Improvements other 

than buildings 5,279,153 3 17,877 8,597,030 
Vehicles, furniture 

Tot31 general fixed assets 514,325.167 $3 17,877 $ -  S 14,646,044 
and equipment 3,474,148 3.474,145 

Enterprise Funds: 

Land $ 209,913 $ s s 209,913 
Improvements 6,935,650 3,336,546 22.255 10,249,941 
Equipment and other 1,4 14,003, 1,4 14,002 
Buildings 11,01O,j31 11,010.53 1 
Construction in pro,gress 2,507,866 828,680 3,336.546 - 

22,077,962 4,165,226 3,355,801 22,554,387 
Less: Accumulated 
depreciation 9,149,423 577,441 22,255 9,704,634 
Net fixed assets $12,928,5 14 S 3,557,785 $ 3,336,546 5 13,179,753 



CITY OF QUINCE’ 

SEPTEMBER 30,2000 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATE%IENTS 

NOTE 7 - INTERFUM) RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 

The composition of interfund baiances as of September 30, 3,000, is as follows: 

Due from Due to 
other funds other funds 

Governmental Funds 
General fund S 9,724,090 S 11,376,346 
Special Revenue 171,95 L 418,174 

Water 5 19,725 779,373, 
Electric 5,853,597 4,224,807 
Sewer 828,729 149,985 
Gas 1,03 1,995 956,900 
Refuse 472.298 549,244 
LandfilI 2S,047 345,766 

Fiduciary Funds 174,3 53 4.22 1 
S 18,8O4,8 25 5 18,804,815 

Proprietary Funds 

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT 

The City had the following changes in the general long-term debt account group for the year ended 
September 30,2000: 

Balance 
October 1, 

Balance 
Sz p te m be I 30, 

1999 Additions Reductions 2000 
Capital lease payable $ 30,209 $ -  5 14,707 $ 15,502 
Note payable 34 1,809 - 54,624 287,185 
Compensated absences 139.288 362.020 3.625 497.68 3 

$ 511,306 $ 362,020 $72,956 $500,370 

Capital lease payable at September 30, 2000 bears an annual interest of 5.30% and is due in January 2001. 

Notes payable at September 30, 2000, bears an annual interest of 8.00% payable in quarterly installments 
of $20,095 through November 2004 and collateralized by land. 
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CITY OF QUINCY 

SEPTEMBER 30,2000 
NOTES TO FIiVAINCIAL STATEMENTS 

Maturities of note payable for the next five years art: 2s follows: 

300 L $ 59,160 
2002 64,02 1 
2003 69,295 
2004 75,007 
2005 19.699 
Total $287.185 

Enterprise Fun& 

Long-tenn debt of the Enterprise Funds at September 30, 2000, consists of the foilowing: 

State Revolving Loan in an amount up to $3,465,000, for waste water 
treatment plant upgrade bearing annual interest at 2.56% payable to a 
government agency in semi-annual payments of $ i 1 1,280 including 
interest starting March 15, 2001, collateralized by revenues from the 
operation of the water and sewer systems S 3,3 17,477 

Note payable to a corporation bearing annual interest at 6.27% and 
payable in annual installments of $19,280 including interest through July 
2003, and is collateralized by equipment 47,120 

$950,000 Water Revenue Bonds bearing interest at 6.25% payabk in 
annual installments ranging from S7,OOO to $63,000 through September 
2028, collateralized by operating income before depreciation of the 
water, sewer, dectr ic and gas system 865,000 

Total $4229.5 97 

Future debt service requirements on State Revolving Loan and Note Payable are as follows: 

Total Year Principal Interest 
2001 $ 150,519 $ 91,021 $24 1,840 
2003, 155,3 11 36,629 24 I ,S40 
2003 159,843 8 1,997 24 1,540 
2004 145,350 77,210 222,560 
2005 149,094 73,466 222,560 

The rea :&e r 2,604,280 574.120 3,178,400 
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CITY OF QUINCY 

SEPTEMBER 30,2000 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Future debt service requirements on Water Revenue Bonds are as follows: 

Year Principal In teres t TO tal 
200 1 s 12.000 S 54,063 5 66.063 
2002 
2003 
3004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
202 1 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 

12.000 
13,000 
14.000 
15,000 
16,000 
I7,OOO 
lS,OOO 
19,000 
20,000 
22,000 
23,000 
25,000 
26,000 
25.000 
30,000 
32,000 
34.000 
36,000 
38,000 
4 1,000 
f-l4,000 
47,000 
50,000 
53,000 
57,000 

53,3 I3 
32,563 
5 1,750 
50,875 
49,938 
45,935 
47,875 
46,750 
45,563 
44,313 
42,938 
4 1,500 
39,938 
35.3 13 
36,563 
34,6SS 
32,658 
30,563 
25,3 13 
25,938 
23,375 
20,625 
17,680 
14,56 1 
11,250 

65,3 13 
65,563 
65,750 
65,875 
65,938 
65,938 
65,515 
65,750 
65,563 
66,3 13 
65,938 
66,500 
65,935 
66,3 I3 
66,563 
66,683 
66,635 
66,563 
66,3 13 
66,935 
67,375 
67,625 
67,680 
67,56 1 
65,250 

2027 60,000 7,658 67,655 
2025 63,000 3,938 66.935 

S 865,000 S 996,500 S 1.86 1,500 Total 

2027 60,000 7.658 67.655 I -  

2025 63,000 3,938 66.935 
S 865,000 S 996,500 S 1.86 1,500 Total 

NOTE 9 - CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

Grant Programs 

The City participates in a number of Federal and State grant programs. These programs are subject to 
financial and compliance audits by the grantors or their respective representatives. The possible 
disallowance of any item charged io the program or request for the return of any unexpended funds 
cannot be determined at this time. No provision, for any liabiiity that may result has been made in the 
financial statements. 
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CITY OF QUINCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2000 

The City is involved in pending lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently 
determined, in the opinion of management. potential claims from litigation against the City which are not 
covered by insurance. would not materially affect the financial position of the City. 

CLosrirc and Postclosrire Care Cusrs 

Current laws and regulations require the City to place final covers on landfill cells as they are closed. and 
perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill ceII sites for thirty years after 
closure. These laws and reguhtions also require the City, on an annual basis, to discIose the extent of its 
financial responsibility for the cost involved. which are referred to as “closure and postclosure care” 
costs. 

At September 30, 2000, the City’s total liability for Iandfill closure and postclosure care costs was 
approximately 5 1,005,400. For 2000, $427,000 relates to active landfill and 5573,500 relates to inactive 
landfills. 

Active landfill consists of the Byrd Landfill CelI 9. The liability balance of $427,000 as of September 30, 
2000 is based on the use of approximately 70% of the existing landfill capacity. Unrecognized costs of 
approximately S f83,OOO will be amortized on a current basis as the existing capacity of 30% is used. This 
estimated capacity is expected to last until 2004 based on current waste flows. 

Contamination Assessment 

In 1991, contamination was noted in several of the City’s closed landfill c e k  The City entered into a 
contract with local engineers to provide contamination assessment and assist the City in the clean up of 
the contaminated landfill cells. The engineers estimated that clean up costs could amount to $200,000. 

The Sewer system is currently operating under it provisional permit from the State of Florida - 
Department of Environment Protection (DEP). The permit establishes a schedule that ailows the City to 
fully compIy with Chapter 403 of Florida Statutes and rules of DEP relating to waste water treatment 
plant upgrades by December I, 1999. Management is upgrading the sewer system through the 
construction of new waste water treatment plant (WWTP) facilities with approximate cost of $3 miIlion. 
The construction of the new waste water treatment is financed from the proceeds of State Revolving Loan 
(See Note 8). At September 30.2000, the construction of WVTP is completed. 

NOTE 10 - DEFICIT RETAINED EARINTXGS/F’UND BALANCES 

The Refuse Fund’s deficit balance of $573,456 is the result of inadequate revenues to cover expenses in 
current and prior fiscal years. This deficit is offset by contributed capital. 

The Special Revenue’s deficit baiance of 5214.719 is the results of inadequate revenues to cover 
expenditures in the curent year and prior fiscal year. This deficit fund balance is offset by available 
earnings in other funds. 
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CITY 01; QUINCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2000 

NOTE 1 I - RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN (RSP) 

The Retirement Savings Plan (RSP) of the City is a defined contribution pension plan established to 
provide benefits to employees upon retirement. The City is required to contribute an amount equal to 
12% of the base pay of each eiigibie employee. Plan provisions and contribution requirements are 
established and may be amended by the City. 

NOTE 13 - POLICE ALW FIREMEN’S SUPPLEMENTGL PENSION PLAN (PFSP) 

Plan membership 

All of the City’s full-time p o k e  officers and firefighters hired under the age of 50 are eligible to 
participate in the Police and Firemen’s Supplemental Pension Plan (PFSP), a single-employer, 
defined benefit pension plan. PFSP provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan 
members. The following brief description of the plan is provided for general information purposes 
only. Participants should refer to Ordinance 72-541 of the City of Quincy, Florida and the 
Summary Plan Description for more complete information. 

At October I, 1997 the date of the latest available actuarial valuation, the City of Quincy, Florida 
Police and Firemen’s Supplemental Pension Plan membership consisted oE 

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits and terminated 
employees entitled to benefits but not yet receiving them - 11. 

Employees of the City by status were as follows: 

Vested 36 

Nonvested - 17 

2 Total current employees 

Funding Policy 

The City’s funding policy is to provide for periodic employee rates that are designed to accumulate 
sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. The employees conuibute a percenta., oe of their covered 
payroll to the plan. The State of Florida also contributes to the Plan. The City is required LO 
conuibute the remaining amounts necessary to fund the PFSP using the actuarial basis of the plan. 

Annual Pension Cost 

The City’s contribution requirement for the year ended September 30, 2000 -,vas zero. 

Eligibility 

A11 fill-time To; ice Officers and Firefighters. 
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CITY OF QWWCY 

SEPTEMBER 30,2000 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATE8IENTS 

( m) Disabi I i ty Retirement 

Participants having 10 or more continuous years of credited service and 10 years o f  contributions 
shall receive a disability benefit if they become tota1Iy and permanently disabled. Benefit i f  life 
annuity with the ten years certain : 

( i )  Line of Duty Disability - Benefit is greater of 
Accrued Pension 
43% of average monthly salary 

(ii) Non-Line-of-Duty Disability - Benefit is the greater of: 
Accrued Pension 
25% of average monthly saIary 

(n) Termination of Service 

Vested percentage of accrued deferred monthly retirement income at date of termination of 
employment. Vested percentage is 35% after five years, increasing 5% per year to 50% after ten 
years and then increasing by 10% per year to 100% after 15 years. There is no vesting prior to five 
years of credited service. The monthly retirement income will commence at normal retirement 
date. Employees eligible for early retirement will be 100% vested. If a terminated participant dies 
prior to retirement, the death benefit is a life income with ten years certain, which can be provided 
by single-sum value at date of death of the deferred vested retirement income. 

(0) Pre-Retirement Death Benefit - A monthly income which can be provided by greater of: 

(i) Single-sum value of accrued deferred monthly retirement income at date of death or 
(ii) The smalIer of: 

12 times final monthly compensation at date of death, and 
100 times anticipated monthly retirement income at normal retirement. 

(p) Post Retirement Death Benefit 

If participant has been receiving a retirement income, payments cease next preceding date of death 
unIess an option form of retirement was selected. If the participant has postponed retirement, the 
benefit is a monthly income which can be provided by the accumulation of interest to the date of 
death of the single-sum value of the normal retirement benefit using the actuarial assumptions for 
the postponed retirement benefit. 

(4) Contributions 

Those received under Chapters 175 and 185, five and one half percent contribution by employee 
until April I, 1994. six and one-haIf percent until November 1998 and seven and one-half percent 
the reaft e r - 
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CITY OF QUINCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2000 

NOTE 13 - RISK NlANAGENIENT 

I t  is the policy of [he City to purchase insurmce for the risks of losses retated to torts; theft of, damage to, 
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. 

NOTE 14 - SEChIENT TNFORAIATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

The City maintains six (6) enterprise funds which provide electric, gas. water, sewer, refuse and landfill 
services. Segment information for the year ended September 30, 2000 is as follows: 

Tau1 
Enterprise 

Funds W 3 t C C  Efectric 

5 1 1.108.096 

204.000 

GU 

S I .269.156 

29.000 

Landfill 

5 1.326.603 

115.000 

4 1.056 

Refuse 

Z G N .  1 SO 

Sewcr 

Oprmting 
Revenue S 16.047.339 58 13.833 

I IO.Iu1 

(55.254 

5880.37 1 

Depreciation and 
amonmuon 577 ,u l  I19.000 

Operatins income 
(loss) I A57 3 ~567.695 3.163.580 307. I24 109.732 

Intergovernmental 
revenue 

Income (loss) 
before operating 
transfers (87.8931 69.825 3.743.07 1 3.3013 1 I 337.175 6.027 116.031 

Operating 
tnnsfers 

In 

1400.000) (4.182.1 16) (3.782.1 161 
~ .. 

(439.045) 

1.639.690 

Net income (loss) (450.305) (62.725) 69.825 

8 15.865 

(87.893) 

183.237 

6.022 i 16.03 I 

Resrricted assets 172.304 468.283 

Property, Plant 
and Equipment 

Additions 8 25.680 875.690 

Re ciremencs 71.255 12,255 

Net working 
capital 3 96 .J79 

IO.? 15.423 

59 1.132 55 I .052 

2.2 19. I - l  I 

95.252 2.082.8 11 

16.733.702 

37494 I 

2.794.423 

72.053 

Total Assets 2.007.205 6 19.735 7.829.675 

Bonds and other 
long-term 
lia bi lit1 es- 
Payable from 

865 .OOO 37.120 4239.597 operating revenues 3.3 17.477 

4327.8 I a 
Total Fund Equity 
(Deficit) 4902.435 12.369.370 1.13 1.200 2.09 1.483 
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CETY OF QUINCY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2000 

NOTE 13 - SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

The City’s permit to operate its Landfill Cell No. 9 at Byrd Landfill expired on January 1, 2001. The 
permit renewal application, together with the application to construct Cells No. 10 Sr 1 I .  was submitted to 
the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) on December 2, 3000. On July 23. 2001 [he City 
received the-Notice of Intent for Permit Denial from DEP. The City was ordered to immediately cease 
operation of the landfill site by not accepting any solid waste and perform complete proper closure of the 
fac i 1 i ty . 

Management believed that the additional information requested by DEP does not affect the operation of 
Cell No. 9 and only relates to proposed Cells No. 10 & 11. On August 6, 2001. the City submitted a 
petition against the DEP’s Notice of Intent for Permit Denial and re-submitted the application to construct 
two (2) additional c e k .  The City also requested temporary permit to continue to operate Cell No. 9. 

The ultimate outcome of these matters is presently undeterminable. However, management is of the 
opinion the ultimate outcome will not have a material adverse effect on the City’s financial position or 
results of operations. 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORlnA 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalenis 
I n vesi me n t s 
Accounts receivable - net 
Due from other funds 
Inventories 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and c3sh equivalents 
1 n vest nit: n t s 

Fixed assets - net 
Other assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

ENTERPRISE li'UNnS 
COMnlNING BALANCE SIIEET 

SEPTEMIBER 30,2000 

Rcfitse I ,a nd fi I I Total Electric Gas Water Sewer 

$ 253,919 $ 172,854 $ 228,555 $ 29,72s $ 76,993 s 4s9,090 $ 1,251,136 
360,114 4 00,565 70.20 I 830,880 

70 1 , j 3  1 

286,3 19 a.086 25,108 2,129 32 1,612 

2 19,024 100,589 12 1,545 74.596 70,414 115,333 
5,8 53,597 1,03 1,995 5 19,725 828,729 472,298 28,047 8.734.39 I 

172,304 17:!,301 
468,284 183,237 8 t 5,865 1,467,356 

2,85 I ,66 1 505,052 2,601,2 4 5 6,663,683 555,106 13.I79,753 
25,505 4 1,807 58,503 3,864 129,679 

!f 10,318,423 .% 2,219,141 5 3,794,423 $ 7,829,675 $ 613,73S $ 2,007,305 $ 26,788,702 

I 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 

POLICE AiW FIREMEN’S SUPPLEMENTAL PENSION PLAN 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SEPTEMBER 30,2000 
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CITY OF QUINCY, FLORIDA 
POLICE A i W  FIREMEN'S SUPPLEMENTAL PENSION PLAX 

REQUTRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFO RRIATION 
SEPTEMBER 30,2000 

(UNil UD [TED) 

ScheduIe I 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 
(THREE YEARS INFOR&IATION AVA41LABLE) 

Act ua ri ;t 1 Unfunded UAXL 
as a % of Actuarial Ac tua ria1 Accrued ( O w  rfunded) 

VaIua tion Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered Cove red 
Date Assets MAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll 

1 O/ 1/97 5 3,635,460 S 2,601,457 S (1,033,973) 140% $ 1,668,020 (63%) 
10/1/96 2,975.644 2,39 1,390 (554,354) 124% 1,625,496 (36%) 
10/ 1/95 2,529,885 2,306,163 (223.722) 109% 1.535.602 (15%) 

Schedule II 

Scheduie of Contributions by Employer and Other Contributing Entities 
(Three Years Information Available) 

Year Annual 
Ended Required Employee City State Total Percentage 

September 30 Contribution Contribution Contribution Contribution Contribution Contributed 

1998 S 139,945 $ 103,752 s -  5 85,453 $ 189.205 135% 
1997 173,390 1 04,9 2 S 82,305 186,233 104% 
1996 158,645 100,790 82.8 15 183,605 116% 

- 
- 

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial 
valuation at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows: 

Valuation Date 
Actuarial cost method 
Amortization method 
Remaining amortization period 
Asset valuation method 
Actuarial assumptions: 

Investment rate of return* 
Projected salary increases* 
*Includes inflation at: 
Cost -o f-living -adj us t men ts  

1 O/ 1/97 
Aggregate cost method 
Not applicable 
Not applicabk 
Market value minus surplus contribution 

8.0% 
6.0% 
4.0% 
Not appIicabIe 
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Watsfl! Rice LP 
Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE A\ND ON TNTERNAI, CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GO V‘ERNMENT A UDUILWG STAiVDA RDS 

REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDrT OF FTirlANCIA4L ST.4TEbIENTS PERFORhlED 

To the WonorabIe Mayor and 
blembers of the City Commission 
City of Quincy, Florida 

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of Quincy, Florida, ( the 
“City”) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2000, and have issued our report thereon 
dated June 29. 3-001. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Aucliring 
Standards, issued by the ComptrolIer Generat of the United States. 

Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s general purpose financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which coutd have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of 
noncompliance that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standurds and is 
described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings as item C-99-1. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial 
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion 
on the general purpose financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control 
over financial reporting. However, we noted certain matters involving the internal control over 
financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be reportable conditions. Reportable 
conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the 
design or operation of the internal control over financia1 reporting that, in our judgment, could 
adverseIy afTect the City’s ability to record, process, summarize and report finanaid data 
consistent with the assertions of management in the general purpose financial statements. 
Reportable conditions are described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings as items IC-00- 1 
to IC-00-5 and IC-99-2 to IC-99-7. 



A material weakness is a coridition in which the design or operation of one or more of the 
internal control components does not reduce 10 ;1 relatively low level the risk that misstatements 
in amounts that would be material in relation to the general purpose financial statements being 
audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employers in the normal course 
of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control over financial 
reporting would not necessarily disclose all mattzrs in the internal control that might be 
reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose ail reportable conditions 
that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, we believe that reportable 
conditions IC-00-1 to IC-00-j and IC-99-2 to IC-99-7 are material weaknesses. We also noted 
others matters involving the intemaj control over financial reporting, which we have reported EO 

the management in a separate letter dated June 29,2001. 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards 

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City as of  and for the year ended 
September 30, 2000, and have issued our report thereon dated June 39, 2001. Our audit was 
performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements 
taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards is 
presented for purposes of additionat analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a 
required part of the general purpose financial statements of the City. Such information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial 
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the general 
purpose financial statements taken as a whoie. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Commission, the Auditor 
General of the State of Florida and other regulatory agencies, and is not intended to be and 
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter 
of public record and its distribution is not limited. 

Tallahassee, Florida 
June 29,2001 
(except for Note 15, as to which 
the date is August 6, 2 O O i )  
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U.S. Ihpurtrnunt ( i f  Justice 
Passed through Florida Department of Juvenile Justice 

Arrican Anierican Femde “Riles of Passage” 
Cominun 1 L y Organizing Program 
Locnl Law Enforcement Block Grant 
Community Orietited Policiiig Services (COPS) 

U.S. Duliartrncrit of  1 Iurrltli vnd IItiriiari Scrviccs 

Tcrnpornry Assistmce for Needy Families 
P U S G ~  through Big Bend Jobs and Education Council, Inc. 

Stkite of Floridu, Ihpiirtmciit uf Juvcnilc Justice 
Minority Over-Rrpresentalion 

16.540 47027 
16.548 Q9009 
16.532 93LBVXX203 
16.710 97UMWX I39 1 

93.558 

$ I40 ,OOO 
109,278 
28,727 

t 45,933 

$67,2 I8 S67,2 I8 
74,271 74,373 
28,727 28,727 
41,417 41,417 

99- 10 85,000 3,0110 25,000 

508,933 236,635 236,634 

DG006 55,357 37,628 37,628 

55,3_57 37,628 37,628 

I 
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City of Quincy, Florida 

SUMMARY OF CURRENT YEAR’S FINDINGS 
For the Year Ended September 30,2000 

r c-oo- 1 CO MI ITTON 

The payroll clerk has access to the ADG Payroll System employee master files and, therefore. 
able to adddelete an employee. change pay rates, deductions, erc. 

CRITERIA 

Sound internal control requires master file maintenance and payroll processing be assigned to 
two independent employees. This is to prevent unauthorized changes to the payroll master files. 

EFFECT OF CONDITION 

Because of a lack of proper segregation of duties, employees may be added or pay rates may be 
changed without the knowledge or approval of management. 

RE CON1hIEM)ATION 

Changes to employee master files shouId be assigned to empIoyees other than the payroll clerks. 
The Human Resources Director or the Senior Accountant wouid be more appropriate to handle 
this function. 

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSE 

We concur with the auditors and we will implement procedures to correct the problem. 

IC-00-2 CONDITION 

The billing clerk has access to customer master files and is, therefore, able to make unauthorized 
changes to utility rates, and/or bills. 

CRITERIA 

Sound internal accounting control requires customer file maintenance and utility billing processing 
be assigned to two independent personnel to provide check and balance. This is to prevent 
unauthorized changes in utility rates and/or biIIs. 

EFFECT OF CONDITION 

Because of a lack of proper segregation of duties, utility rates and/or biIls may be changed without 
the knowledge of management. 
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City of Quincy, Florida 

SUMMARY OF CURRENT YEAR’S FINDINGS 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2000 

Changes to customer master files may be assigned to the Customer Service Director. This 
recommendacion and the recommendation on item IC-00-1 may be implemented by a k o  assigning 
security codes to ensure authorize access and responsibility. 

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE 

We concur with the auditors and we will implement procedures to correct the problem. 

Monthly reconciliation of Accounts Receivables - Utilities balances per general ledger (GL) and 
subsidiary ledgers (SL) is not done as parc of the City’s month-end closing procedures. 

CRITERIA 

Subsidiary ledgers of accounts serves as the detailed analysis of the balance in the general ledger. 
Thus, the balances of general and subsidiary ledger should be reconciled periodically, at least 
monthly . 

EFFECT OF CONDITION 

Because of the absence of monthly reconciliations, we noted a difference in the balance of Account 
Receivable - Utilities per general and subsidiary ledgers as follows: 

Balance per GL S 438.647 
Balance per SL 8 2 2,2 9 9 

Difference $ (333.652) 

RECOMMENDATION 

The City should adopt a policy of reconciling the balances per general and subsidiary ledgers 
monthly. The reconciliation should not be assigned to the employee who processes bilIings or 
receives collections. The reconciliation should be reviewed by the Finance Director and any 
reconciling items noted adjusted to the books promptly. 

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSE 

We concur with the auditors and we will implement procedures to correct the problem. 

39 



City of Quincy, Florida 

SUMMARY OF CURRENT YEAR’S FINDINGS 
For the Year Ended September 30,2000 

IC-OO-4 CONDITION 

The foilowing deficiencies were noted in the review of transactions related to employees’ 
retirement savings (ERS) plan and police and firemen’s supplemental pension (PFSP) plan: 

a )  Transactions related to the investments of both pIans such as interest income eamed and 
market value adjustments were not monitored and recorded in the books: 

b) Contributions to and disbursements from the PFSP were no t  recorded in the books; and 

c) Retirement benefits payments from the ERS were not properly recorded. 

CRITERIA 

The City’s retirement savings plan guidelines require monitoring of all transactions reiated to 
each pian to ensure effective management of its investment as well as its financial status. 

EFFECT OF CONDITION 

Due to the failure of the City to effectiveIy monitor and record pension pIan and investments 
transactions, account balances during the year were not fairly stated, and erroneous entries in the 
books were only corrected during the yearend audit. 

RE COMMEND ATTON 

The City should implement procedures to effectively monitor and record transactions of the ERS 
and PFSP. 

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSE 

We concur with the auditors and we will imptement procedures to correct the problem. 
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City of Quincy. Florida 

SUkfiMARY OF CURRENT YEAR’S FINDINGS 
For the Year Ended September 30,2000 

IC-00-5 CUND ITION 

The City accounts for its grants under the federal and state programs under the Special Revenue 
Funds. However. during the year we noted several g r ~ n t s  transactions that were recorded under 
the General Fund. 

CRITERIA 

It is the City’s poiicy to account for grant funds under the Special Revenue Funds. 

EFFECT OF CONDITION 

Financial statements as of the fiscal year-end 200 required numerous corrections to transfer grant 
transactions that were initially accounted for under the General Fund to the Special Revenue 
Fund. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Procedures should be in place to ensure that accounting for grant transactions are consistently 
applied and in accordance with the City’s policy. 

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE 

We concur with the auditors and we will implement procedures to correct the problem. Grant 
funds will be accounted for as SpeciaI Revenue funds. 
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City  of Quincy, Florida 

SU'hlMAICY OF PRIOR YEAR'S FINDINGS 
For the Year Ended September 30.1000 

The City's quarterly financial status reports that are submitted to various grantors did not 
agree with the City's financial records. 

CURRENT STA4TUS 

A similar finding was noted in the current year's audit. 

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSE 

During the fiscal year 2001, quarterly financial status reports submitted to vuious grantors 
agree with the City's financial records. 

IC-99 - 2 CONDITION 

It was noted that the City does not prepare monthly bank reconciliation for all bank 
accounts . 

CURRENT STATUS 

A similar finding was noted in the current year's audit. 

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSE 

During the fiscal year 2001, bank reconciliation for all bank accounts are prepared on a 
monthly basis. 

IC-99 - 3 CONDITION 

It was noted that the City conducts periodic physical inventory of property and equipment 
both for the enterprise and general government operations. However, the result of the 
physical count was not reconciled to the Iistings maintained at the property section and to 
the book balance. 

CURRENT STATUS 

A similar finding was noted in the current year's audit. In addition, the City did not 
prepare fixed asset schedules to support the computation of the monthly depreciation 
expenses recorded in the books. We also noted that in the annual physical count of 
property and equipment, the City did not  include its land. buildings and improvements. 

iLIANAGEEh/IEX?"S RESPONSE 

We concur with the auditors and we will implement procedures to correct the problem. 



City of Quincy, Florida 

IC-99 - 4 

IC-99 - 5 

SUMMARY OF PRIOR YEAR’S FINDINGS 
For the Year Ended September 30,2000 

CONDITION 

We noted the following weaknesses in the City’s accounting systems and procedures: 

a) Absence of monthly cut off financial statements; and 
b) Lack of preparation of monthly account schedules. anaiyses and reconciliation 

The above weaknesses resulted in the following: 

1) Accounts with abnormal balances; 
2) Long outstanding unsupported account payables; 
3) MiscIassification of transactions; 
4) Several accounts with general Iedger balance not agreeing with the subsidiary ledger 

balances; 
5) Interfund balances not reconciled; and 
6 )  Cash balances not in agreement with the adjusted bank reconciliation baiances. 

To ensure that the financial statements are fairly stated, numerous audit adjustments were 
made to account balances. 

CURRENT STATUS 

Similar findings were noted in the current year’s audit 

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSE 

During the fiscal year 2001, management has implemented several accounting controls to 
minimize the weaknesses stated above. 

CONDITION 

The City has several grants from various Federal and State agencies. Presently, the 
respective City departments that applied for the grants handle administration of these 
grants. Under this system, there is no centralized monitoring of compliance with grant 
requirements, progress of applicable projects, and financial manasement and reporting of 
grants. 

CURRENT STATUS 

A s i r d a r  finding was noted in the current year‘s audit. In addition, the following 
deficiencies were noted, which resulted to the delay in our review of supporting 
documentation related to the City’s grants. 

a. During the year the City transferred the grant administration of its two grants received 
from the State of Florida, Department of Juvenile Justice from the City’s Grant 
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City of Quincy, Florida 

SUMMARY OF PRIOR YEAR’S FINDINGS 
For the Year Ended September 30,3000 

Manager to the City’s Police Department. However. records related to the EWO grants 
were not updated to facilitate our review. 

b. The City did not have copies o f  ail its p n t  ay-eements. 

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSE 

We concur with the auditors and we will adopt policies and procedures, to the extent 
reasonable, to ensure centralized monitoring of compliance with grant requirements. 
progress of applicable projects, and financial management and reporting of grants 

IC-99 - 6 CONDITION 

It was noted that the City does not have procedures in place to require a representative 
from the finance department to review the cash receipts edit list prepared by the cashiers 
prior to posting to the general ledger. This is to ensure correctness of account codes. 
accounting for each cash received, and completeness of recorded transactions. 

CURRENT STATUS 

A similar finding was noted in the current year’s audit. Consequently, we noted several 
instances of double postings and mispostings of cash receipts. 

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSE 

Review of cash receipts edit list is currently performed by the Accountant II in the Finance 
Department. 

IC-99 - 7 CONDITION 

It was noted that it is the policy of the City to recognize liabilities in the accounting 
records upon receipt of supplier’s invoice rather than in the period in which goods and 
services are received. As a consequence, account balances for particular assets. liabilities 
and expenses were not fairly stated for the amount of goods and services received but are 
yet to be invoiced. 

CURRENT STATUS 

A similar finding was noted in the current year’s audil. 

NfANAGEMENT’S RESPONSE 

Currently, we recognize encumbrances for served purchase requisitions and orders. We 
will continue to implement the policy until  the purchasing process in the Deprtm~nC of 
General Services is established and operational. 



1 -  Certified Public Accountants and Consultants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON EXAMINATION OF ;LlANAGEMENT‘S 
ASSERTION ABOUT COb1PLIANCE WITH SPECIFIED REOUTREMENTS 

To the Wonorable Mayor and 
tMembers of the Cicy Commission 
City of Quincy, Florida 

We have examined management’s asserrion about the City of Quincy, Florida’s (the “City’) 
compliance with the allowable cost requirements established in the grant agreements applicable 
to the state grants and aids appropriations identified on the schedule of expenditures of federal 
and state awards for the year ended September 30, 2000, included in the accompanying 
Management’s Assertion Report. Management is responsible for the City’s compliance with 
those requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on manasemen t’s assertion about 
the City’s compliance based on our examination. 

Our examination was made in accordance with attestation standards established by the American 
hsti tute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe th3t our examination 
provides a reasonabIe basis for our opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal 
determination on the City’s compliance with specified requirements. 

In our opinion, management’s assertion that the City complied with the aforementioned 
requirements during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000, is fairly stated, in all material 
respects. 

This report is intended soleIy for the information and use of the City Commission, the Auditor 
General of the State of Florida and other regulatory agencies, and is not intended to be and 
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter 
of public record and its distribution is not limited. 

TaIIahassee, Florida 
June 29,2001 
(except for Note 15, as to which 
the date is August 6, 2001) 



- .  QUINGY' FLORIDA 

THE CITY OF QUINCY mlnaa 1825 

I. William Eari Banks. City Manager of the City of Quincy, Flonda (the "City") heieby assert 
that the Cicy complied with aIIowable COSE requiremencs of che p n c s  and aids appropriacions 
identified on the attached Schedule of Expenditure of Federal and State . b a r d s  dunng tbe fiscal 
year ended Scprember 30, 3000. 

June 29.2002 
Date 
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Iats8.n Rice HP - @  Certified Public Accnuntants and Consultants 
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IhPDEPEXDEiUT AUDITORS’ MANXGEMEXT LETTER 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the City Commission 
City of Quincy, Florida 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of [he Ciry of Quincy. Florida 
(the “City“) for the year ended September 30, 3000, we considered the City’s inrernd concrol 
structure to plan our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the 
tinancia1 statements and not to provide assurance on the intemal control structure. 

Mowever, during our audit we became aware of several matters that are opportunities for 
strengthening internal controls and operating efficiency. Pages 45 to 53? of this letter, 
summarize our comments and suggestions regarding those matters. A separate report dated l u n e  
29, 2001, contains our report on reporcable conditions in the City’s intemal control structure. 
This letter does not affect our report dated June 2s), 2001, on the general purpose financial 
statements of the City. 

We will review the status of these comments during the next audit engqement .  We have 
already discussed many of these cotnments and suggestions with vz~rious City personnel, and we 
will be pleased to discuss them in further detail at your convenience, to perform any additional 
study of these matters. or to assist you in implementing the recommendations. 

TalIahassee, FIorida 
June 29? 2001 
(except for Note 15, as to which 
the date is August 6, 3001) 



City of Quincy. Florida 

SUMMARY OF CURRENT YEAR'S FINDINGS 
For the Year Ended September 30,2000 

bIL-00-1 CONDITION 

Several City employees are using their personal automobiles in conducting official business for 
the City. Currently, the City does not have procedures in place to ensure that those employees 
have adequate insurance coverage. 

CRITERIA 

Sound business practice requires that sufficient insurance coverage should be obtained co cover 
losses that may be incurred, including acts of employees durins their official ducies with the 
City. 

EFFECT OF CONDITION 

The City may incur losses not covered by its insurance coverage due to work related accidents 
without full insurance coverage by its employees. 

Procedures should be implemented requiring periodic review of adequacy of insurance of 
empIoyees using personal automobiles in conducting official business for the City. 

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE 

We concur with the auditors and we wilI implement procedures to correct the problem. 

Mt-00-2 CONDITION 

During the year, the City opened a new bank account and transferred an investment fund to 
another investment manager. However, new accounts were not added to the general ledger chart 
of accounts to account for the transactions under the new accounts opened. Instead. transactions 
during the year were continuously accounted for using the old account codes. 

CRITERIA 

Use of distinct account titles for each bank account and investment account facilitates proper 
recording of transacrions and reconciliation of account balances. 



City of  Quincy. Fiotida 

Sb3IMARY OF CURRENT YEAR'S FINDINGS 
For the Year Ended September 30.2000 

EFFECT OF COhiDITION 

The reconciliation that was done at year-end for the two accounts required several adjusting 
entries to correct the balances per the general Iedser. 

New accounts codes should be added to xcuuncs for transactions under the new bank account 
and investmenr account. 

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSE 

New ~ C C O U I I T  codes were added to the current chart of' accounts to account for the transactions 
under the new bank account and invesment account. 

ML-00-3 CONDITION 

We noted that the City is not using the fixed assets and inventory modules of the ADG 
accounling system. Fixed assets listings are prepared using a spreadsheet application while the 
inventory listing is prepared using Microsoft Access. 

CRITERIA 

The ADG Accounting Software has various modules that are able to interface with the general 
ledger. This capability significantly reduces the time and cost involved in summarizing 
transactions and generating reports. A11 modules of the computerized accounting software 
shouId be utilized to maximize the return of investment the City made to acquire the system. 

EFFECT OF CONDITION 

Due to the faiIure of the City to utilize the fixed assets module, there were no complete fixed 
assets listings as of September 30,2000. Further, there was no schedule available to support the 
computation of depreciation expense recorded in the books. 

The inventory listing provided to us were prepared using the Microsoft Access software and wits 
based on inventory records maintained at the warehouse. The balance of inventory per listing 
did not agree to the bdance per the general ledger. 
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City of Quincy, Florida 

ML-00-4 

SUMMARY OF CLrRRENT YEAR’S FINDINGS 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2000 

RECOMMEND ATTUN 

The City should start using the fixed assets and inventory moduies of ADG Accounting Software 
to save time and effort in summarizing transactions and generating report. The ADG system has 
several features which will enable the City to effectivefy record transactions. 

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSE 

We concur with the auditors and we will implement procedures to correct the problem. 

CONDITION 

We noted that a department head initiates contracts for goods and services and ultimately signs 
contracts on behalf of the City, without going-though the City’s procurement process, and pre- 
approval by the City Manager (and where required the City Commission). 

CRITERIA 

The City’s procurement process provides that all goods and services over $400 are to be 
obtained through the City’s procurement procedures. The City Charter authorizes only the City 
Manager to enter into contracts on behalf of the City. 

EFFECT OF COMIITION 

Goods andor services couid be obtained that rue in vioiation of the City’s procurement 
procedures and/or Charter. 

RECOMblENDATION 

We recommend that the City strictly adhere to its policies and Charter with respect to its 
procurement process for goods and services. 

MANAGEbIENT RESPONSE 

We concur with the auditors and we will implement strict adherence to our poiicies and 
procedures and Charter with respect to procurement process for goods and services. 
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City of Quincy, Florida 

SUMMARY OF CURRENT YEAR’S FINDINGS 
For the Year Ended September 30,2000 

hIL-00-5 GASB #34 IMPLEMENTATION 

In June 1999. GASB issued Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis for State and Locd Governments, which establishes new financial 
reporting requirements for State and Local Govemments. It establishes that the basic financial 
statements and required supplementary information (RSI) for general purpose governments 
should consist of  

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD 9r A) 
Basic financia1 statemencs which include: 

1. Government-wide financial statements 
2. Fund financial statements 
3. Notes to the financial statements 
4. Required supplementary information ( M I )  

The requirements of this Statement are effective in three phases based on a government’s total 
annual revenues in the first fiscal year ending after June 15. 1999. Governments with total 
annual revenues (excluding extraordinary items) of $100 million or more (phase 1) should apply 
this statement for periods beginning after lune 15, 2001. 

Governments with at least $10 million but less than $100 million in revenues (phase 2 )  should 
apply this Statement in periods beginning after June 15, 2002. Governments with Iess than $10 
million in revenues (phase 3) should apply this Statement for periods besinning after June 15, 
2003. Earlier application is encouraged. 

Based on the above criteria, the City of Quincy, Florida should implement Statement No. 34 in 
the period beginning October 1, 2002 or earlier if so elected. 

We recommend that management begin the process now of developing an imprementation plan. 

, 
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C City of Quincy, Florida 

,~ SUMMARY OF PRIOR YEAR'S FINDINGS r ; , For the Year Ended September 30, 2000 

ML·99·1 CONDITION 

Accounting records frequently could not be located when needed. 

CURRENT STATUS 

Although, filing/retrieval of documents (Le., invoices) significantly improved, the City still has 
not come up with a written policy to address filing, retrieving, and storing of records and 
documents. 

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE 

We concur with the auditors and the recommendation will be considered in the accounting 
policies and procedures manual that we are developing. 

ML·99·2 CONDITION 

The monthly and quarterly statements obtained from the investment trustee are not reconciled to 
employer contributions per the general ledger. It was suggested that the employer contributions 
per the general ledger be reconciled to the trustee statements either on a monthly or quarterly 

basis. 


CURRENT STATUS 


A similar finding was noted in the current year's audit. 


MANAGEMENT REPONSE 


We concur with the auditors and we will implement procedures to correct the problem. 


ML-99·3 CONDITION 

The finance department does not prepare monthly financial reports. It was suggested that 
monthly financial reports be prepared to assist management in making decisions timely and 
effectively. 

CURRENT STATUS 

A similar finding was noted in the current year's audit. 

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSE 

During the fiscal year 2001. monthly financial reports are prepared and submitted to the City 
Manager every 15(/1 of the following month. 
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COiktlPLIANCE WITH RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 

Certain reportable conditions in che internal controi Structure as well as compliance were 
identified in the prior y e x ’ s  audit report. However, all of the findings remain uncorrected as 
noted in the separace letter on the internal control structure and compliance, included herein. 

Stare oj* Fincrn c iai Eme rs en cy 

The City is not in a state of financial emergency as defined in Section 318.503 { 1) of the Florida 
state statues. 

Financial Reporr Filed with the Florida Depamnenr of Banking and Finance 

The financial report required to be filed with the Ronda Department o€ Banking and Finance 
pursuant to Section 215.3 1( l)(b) of the Florida Sratutes is in agreement with the audit report. 

Nume and Legal Arrthority for the Oversight Unit 

The reporting entityloversight unit subject to this report is h e  City of Quincy, Florida w h c h  was 
incorporated in 1823 pursuant to a Special Act of the State of Florida LegisIamre. 

Cumpliance wirh Rule IO.400, “Tangible Personal Property” 

The City’s accountin,a records substantially conform with Rule 10.400 of the Rules of the 
Auditor General. 



Exhibit C 

1. The City has sufficient financial capability to provide the limited 
services which the City currently plans to provide. This capability is evidenced by the 
financial resources and other assets set forth in the City's audited financial 
statements for 1998, 1999 and 2000. 

2. The City will maintain the limited services which it currently plans to  
provide through revenue generated by its own operations and sale of service to new 
customers. This capability is evidenced by the financial resources and other assets 
set forth in the City's audited financial statements for 1998, 1999 and 2000. 

3. The City has sufficient financial capability to any limited lease andor 
ownership obligations which it may assume in connection with its provision of service. 
This capability is evidenced by the financial resources and other assets set forth in 
the City's audited financial statements for 1998, 1999 and 2000. 


